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Clermont Hotel Group Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022
Registered Number 00262958

Strategic Report
The directors present their Strategic Report for the year ended 30 June 2022,

Company status and principal activities
Clermont Hotel Group Limited (“the Company”), renamed from GLH Hotels Limited on 1 November 2022, is a limited liability company domicited
and registered in England. The principal activity of the Company is the ownership and operation of hotels in the UK.

Strategy and Developments
During the year ended 30 June 2022 the Company and its subsidiaries operated 16 hotels, which also comprises the “Group”.

The Group has loan borrowings of £192.7m (2021: £211.7m). During the year the Group made a net draw-down of £36.0m of the loan facilities
(2021: £60.0m). The Group has also repaid £55.4m of the debentures (2021: Nil). Further details are set out in note 16. At the date of the approval
of these financial statements a net repayment of £27.0m has been made on the revolving credit facility (“RCF") (further detail in note 27).

Review of the business

In the past year, trading performance of the Group has improved since the UK Govemment eased COVID-19 restrictions for hospitality on 17 May
2021, with full legal restrictions ending on 19 July 2021, However, the Group is still recovering from the impact of the pandemic and trading results
ocontinue to be below pre-COVID levels. The emergence of the Omicron variant dampened demand through December 2021 and January 2022 and
had a negative effect on the international travel market which is yet to fully return, In addition, staff shortages are creating issues across the sector
resulting in a highly competitive market, and rising inflation has caused an increase in costs across the board, There was, however, significant
recovery in the final quarter of the financial year, and the Directors expect further recovery in the year ended 30 June 2023,

The consolidated results for the year ended 30 June 2022 show a £118.3m increase in revenue, This is driven by 9 hotels remaining open for the
whole of the current financial year and 7 hotels reopening in the year, having been closed for a pericd of the previous year due to UK wide
lockdowns and commercial feasibility. This has distorted the year on year comparison. Despite this, revenuss of the Group continued to fall
behind pre-COVID levels due to demand issues. Room rate continues to be competitive with a predominantly domestic customer base, however
rate is expected to improve as overseas travel valumes improve,

Expenses for the year ended 30 June 2022 increased by £96.3m. This was driven by hotel closures in the previous financial year, higher energy
prices, a reduction in UK Government support schemes and a rise in inflation rates. The impact of the hotels reopening, higher energy prices and
inflation contributed to property costs rising to £24.4m (2021: £3.4m). Property costs were also impacted by higher business rates which increased
to £14.0m (2021: £2,7m) as rates relief reduced from a full rates holiday in the prior year, to a capped business rates relief scheme in the current
year. In addition, the Government ended the Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme on 30 September 2021, with grant income received reduced by
97%. This contributed to an increase in staff costs to £36.8m (2021: £11,6m), with the remaining increase due to additional staff and agency staff
required following the full reopening of the Group's hotels post lockdown, The Group also recognised business interruption insurance claim income
of £8.1m (2021: £13.1m), which is disclosed under other income in the P&L. See note 27 for details.

Right-of-use asset depreciation and lease liability interest expenses remained significant in the current year at £13.7m (2021: £14.6m) and £33.8m
(2021: £33.8m) respectively. Expenses also includes impairment of property, plant and equipment of £2.2m (2021: £0.1m) and right-of-use assets
of £5,1m (2021: £0,8m) relating to the Hyde Park hotel,

The Company results for the year ended 30 June 2022 include an investment impairment of £35.9m (2021: £117.6m), and a provision against
amounts owed by subsidiaries of £67.1m (2021: £55.6m). See detalls in Note 11 and 14 respectively.

The net asset position of the Group has increased to £438.4m (2021: £402.2m), mainly due to the impact of shareholder funding of £565.4m, see
note 16 for details, net of losses for the year,

The Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) used to measure trading performance of the hotel are cccupancy percentage, average room rate (ARR)
and revenue per available room (RevPAR).

KPis: Movement vs. prior year Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021

% %

Occupancy (percentage points).! 32.0 (49.0)
Average room rate (ARR) 92.0 (51.0)
Revenue per available room (RevPAR) 1,225.0 (95.1)

Engaging with our stakeho!ders (section 172(1) statement)

The Directors have a duty to promote the success of the Company and the Group for the benefit of its members as a whole, having regard to the
interests of our customers, our people, our relationship with our suppliers and the impact of our operations on the communities in which we operate,
and to ensure that we maintain a reputation for high standards of business conduct,

Our key stakeholders are our customers, employees, lenders, landlords, the beneficiaries of the DB pension scheme and the communily and
environment. All key Group decisions consider the impact on relevant stakeholders. Increasingly, stakeholders are looking to understand our
performance across multiple areas, including products and services, innovation, governance and workplace practices. The Company endeavours
to gain an understanding of the perceptions and attitudes of each stakeholder group and the weight they give to different issues. Where the views
of the different stakeholder groups do not align, the Group must decide on the best course to promote the Group's long-term success. The key
strategic decisions for the Directors concerned the timing of reopening the remaining sites to maximise revenue in light of market demand and
industry wide recruitment challenges,

¥ In the current year, occupancy movement has been calculated as a percentage point difference. This change has been applied to the prior year
comparatives also,
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Strategic Report (continued)

Engaging with our stakeholders {section 172(1) statement) (continued)

Customers
Customers are the core facus of our business..We strive to deliver outstanding customer experiences in order to build long-term and sustainable
relationships. Key issues for our customers include high quality service which meets their high expectations and competitive pricing.

Employees
As a service organisation, our employees are critical to our business. We ensure our people are engaged and empowered to deliver the best service
for our customers and be happier themselves.

The Group strives to ensure our employees maintain and embody the Group values. Our values encourage employees to:
. Be bold in our decisions, our actions and our aspirations.
. Be adaptable by embracing change and planning for the expected and the unexpected.
. Be real through sharing feedback and ideas, and always being open and honest,

See Employee matters section in the Directors' report for further information on how we engage with our employees,

Lenders

The Group prioritises strong relationships with its lenders and continues to build on long-term established relationships. These relationships work
not just by fulfiling contractual performance obligations, but also include regular communications on business strategy and working as partners
towards shared objectives,

Landlords

The location and quality of the Group’s hotels underpins our business and is fundamental to the service we provide. Good relationships with the
landlords of our properties (across multiple contractual relationships) are pivotal to ensure our properiies are maintained to a high standard, offer a
compelling offering to our guests and support the long-term growth strategy of the Group,

DB Pension Scheme
The Group operates two defined benefit schemes, both of which are closed to new members and their assets are held in separate funds
administered by Trustees.

The Group have nominated representatives on the board of trustees, They attend regular meetings to discuss relevant issues with the pension
scheme administrators and external advisor to ensure the Group are fulfilling ali requirements.,

o ity and envir t
The Group hosts and encourages involvement in a number of events throughout the financial year, partnering with charities and fund raising
exercises which aim to have a positive impact on the community in which we operate. '

The environment is a priority for the Group, The Group has an ESG Working Committes which is focussed on energy, water and waste reduction,
The Group has achieved the HRS BRB booking provider Stay Green Accreditation and is working towards ECOSmart Accreditation for all hotels.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal Risks

Mitigating Activities

Brand reputation

(1) The Group is reliant upon the reputation of the Clermont Hotel
Group brands. Any event that materially damages the reputation of
one or more of the Group's brands and/or failure to sustain the appeal
of the Group's brands to its customers may have an adverse impact
on subsequent revenues from that brand or related operation.

(2) The Group is also reliant upon the reputation of the Hard Rock
International and Hard Rock Cafe ("Hard Rock") brands. Any event
that materially damages the reputation of one or more of these brands .
and/or failure to sustain the appeal of these brands to its customers |
may have an adverse impact on subsequent revenues from that brand
or related operation.

(1) Each of the brands in our portfolio are designed to meet specific
guest needs. The consistency of our brands is managed through the
brand standard requirements, We continually review ways to increase
awareness and loyalty towards our brands,

We are committed to conducting business in a responsible manner,
We have put in place a set of internal policies and procedures, which
are supported by training, monitoring and reporting.

(2) Hard Rock have stipulated brand standards to be applied by all of
their operations worldwide to ensure that the brand image and
consistency is maintained. We are required to comply with these
standards also, With a portfolio of operations around the globe they
are required to continually review ways to increase awareness and
loyalty towards their brands and have mitigations processes in place
should anylhing occur which may challenge a brand.

We also have a legal ability to walk away from the hotel franchise
agreement should an event occur which meeis certain criteria and
means that we would prefer to operate the hotel under a different
brand. However, this would be seen as a last resort and instead we
rely on robust governance and management of the relationships with
Hard Rock to ensure that their and our best interests are served.
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Strategic Report (continued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Principal Risks

‘Political or economic uncertainty

The Company and the Group are exposed to the risk of adverse
political or economic developments. The state of world economies and
consumer confidence affect demand in the hospitality sector.

Eventsin Ukraine represent an ongoing risk to the UK economy. There
has been a direct impact on utility and energy prices, and these are
likely to remain volatile in the short to medium term.

Economic conditions remain very uncertain, reflected in the UK

The resultant "Cost of Living crisis” is a focus of much media attention
and this will inevitably impact consumer confidence and behaviour in
the coming months.

The sector generally has been faced with a challenging shortfall of
employee availability following the pandemic, This has adversely
impacted cost of labour, with difficulties filling vacancies seen in many
areas of the workforce. Labour supply shortages present a risk to the
operating model and the ability of the Group to adequately preserve a
positive guest experience and could constrain occupancy.

The Group is susceptible to fluctuations in major world currencies,
which can impact business from global customers and cost of imports,
The current year has seen a weakening pound against the US dollar
which has a negative impact through loss of confidence in the UK
market and an increase in FX losses, but could also have a positive
impact on our inbound markets, especially the US.

A negative impact on the Group's revenue and profitability will also
have a direct impact on the valuation of property, plant and equipment
and other areas that depend on forecasts,

inflation and interest rate increases, which are forecast to continue..

Mitigating Activities

The Group operates a diverse range of brands, with hotels in the 3, 4
and 5 star markets. These brands have been designed to have
international appeal, and the customer base is not concentrated in any
specific geographical region.

Pricing strategy is under constant review and the Group can respond
proactively to fluctuations in demand in order to maximise returns, This
includes the assessment of when it is economically beneficial to open
or close a site, with resources reallocated accordingly.

The Group retains a proactive focus on costs and the Group’s
Procurement team regulary review the risks associated in the Groups
supply chain. This includes:

- Joint business plans with key suppliers, to mitigate risks caused by
currency fluctuations and potential changes in import procedures;

- Implementation of risk management procedures including
contingency planning;

- Where there is a potential risk of increased costs in the supply chain
due to a shortage of raw materials and/or manpower, price fixes/ price
caps were negotiated;

- For high-risk products, alternative suppliers and products have been
identified and alternative menus developed for high risk products to
ensure business continuity,

The Group will utilise the Energy Bill Refief Scheme to manage its
exposure to rising energy prices,

The Group constantly reviews its approach to being a compelling
employer choice for UK nationals and overseas nationals alike. This
includes focusing on creating a great place to work, career
development opporunities, employee engagement as well as
competitive compensation and bensfits, which are benchmarked
against industry standards

A flexible staffing model has been employed in order to channel staff
resource into the hotels and departments with the most demand,
facilitated by multi-skilling of employees, The mix of agency staff vs
employees is also optimised to support short term staffing
requirements.

Regarding the potential negative impact on the value of property, plant
and equipment, the short, medium and long term trading strategy are
constantly reviewed by management to ensure revenue and
profitability is maximised, as discussed above in the review of the
business. The forecasts which inform the asset valualions are
regularly reviewed, aliowing management to identify any signs of
impairment and take decisive action to protect asset value:

Pandemic

The Group consider the risk of future government mandated-
lockdowns in relation to the COVID-19 pandemic to be low, because
of the UK's strong vaccine programme and the relatively low impact of
the Omicron variant. However, COVID-19 had a material impact on
the performance of the Group, and the Group is exposed to the risk of
a more virulent strain, or a similar pandemic in the future. This could
create significant operational challenges through loss of trade, putting
pressure on profitability and cashflow, which may require additional
sources of funding. .

Loss of trade and reduction of profitability because of a pandemic
could have a significant negative impact on the valuation of property,
plant and equipment and other areas that depend on forecasts.

The health and safely of guests and employees is a top priority for the
Company and the Group. Policies and procedures are regulary
reviewed by Management to ensure they are appropriate and that the
Group remains complaint with applicable regulations.

Financial forecasts are updated regulady and reviewed by
Management to ensure the longer-term prospects of the Group are
understood and appropriate funding is secured.

Tight controls are in place over spending, both on operational costs
and capital expenditure.

Management has and will continue to utilise available Government
support as applicable.
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Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Principal Risks

Treasury risk

The Company's treasury activities are managed by the Group's
treasury function. The Group is exposed to treasury risks relating to
interest rates on overdrafts, counterparty credit and management of
cash, to ensure all liabilities are met as they fall due.

Cash management has been a heightened risk in recent years, as a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the reduced revenues and cash
inflow as a result.

| P .
The current year has seen a rise in interest rates and a depreciation
of the pound against the US dollar which Increases the Group's
treasury risk,

There are no debt repayments due in the financial year ended 30 June
2023,

Clermont Hotel Group Limited
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Mitigating Activities

The Group's Treasury function manages both the activities of all
operating companies within the Group and the Group's borrowings.
Rolling cash flow forecasts are maintained by the Group to ensure
sufficient headroom is maintained to meet ali future liabilities.

The Group's treasury activities, including the use of financial
instruments, are overseen by Guocco Group Limited (Note 29),

Cyber rlék

The Group and Company, similar to all organisations, are exposed to
the ongoing risk of cyber-attacks, and attempts to access systems, for
example through phishing emails,

There are risks of financial loss if systems are compromised, in
parlicular through payments made to incorrect bank details, or loss of
“key system data, .

ot

The Groupis continuousiy 1 ing and improving sy
this risk is managed. Mitigating activities include:

to ensure

1) Strict Network Access Controls and Conditional Access Policies
restrict who can gain access to our network, and also for those who
have permission to ensure they can only access the areas they need.

2) Systems are regulary reviewed to ensure versions are up to date
with the iatest security updates. ‘

3) Multi-factor authentication is required to access systems to ensure
our user accounts cannct easily be compromised..

Signed:
Chew Seong Aun ~ ~
Director

16 December 2022
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their Directors' Report and finandial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022.

Result and dividends

The results for the year ended 30 June 2022 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on
page 11. Loss after tax for the year was £39.3m (2021: £50.7m). The decreased loss before tax is explained in the Strategic Report on page 1. The
Group's texation credit for the year decreased to £13.9m (2021 : £19.4m) predominantly due to the impact of tax rate changes on deferred tax assets
in the prior year,

The directors have not proposed a dividend in the current financial year (2021: Nil).

Future Develop ts and Subsequent Events
The Directors expact the significant recovery seen in the final quarter of the financial year, to continue into the year ended 30 June 2023, with
occupancy and average room rate increases and improved business profitability and cash flows.

Post balance sheet events have been detailed in note 27, -

Directors & directors’ interests
The directors who held office during the financial year were as foillows:

Leng Hai Kwek

Seong Aun Chew

Cynthia Cheng

Jonathan Scott (appointed 5§ December 2022)

No director had any interests in, or rights to subscribe for, shares or debentures in the Company or any fellow subsidiary during the financlal year.

Leng Hai Kwek and Seong Aun Chew are directors of the intermediate parent company, GL Limited, and their interests in its shares and share
options are disclosed in that company’s accounts.

The directors benefited from qualifying third-party indemnity provisions in place during the financial year and at the date of this report:

Going concern

After making due enquiries, the Directors believe that it remains appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concemn basis, The basis
of this assessment is detailed on page 16, For this reason they continue to adopt the going concem basis in preparing the accounts.

The Company has net assets of £391.8m (2021: £439.0m) and a modest gearing ratio of 33% (2021: 26%).
The Group has net assets of £438.4m (2021 £402,2m) and a modest gearing ratio of 31% (2021: 28%).

The Gearing Ratio Calculation has been calculated as follows:

Borrowings

Borrowlings + Total Equity

Financia! Risk
The Group's policy and objectives related to financial risk management, including the policy for hedging, is considered in Note 20 to the financial
statements. This also considers the position in relation to credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

Employee matters
The Group's policy of providing employess with information about the Company and the Group has continued and regular meetings are held
belween management and employees to allow exchanges of information and ideas.

The Group gives every consideration to applications for employment by disabled persons where the requirements of the job may be adequately
filled by a disabled person. Where existing employees become disabled, it is the Group's policy wherever practicable to provide continuing
employment under similar terms and conditions and to provide training, career development and promotion wherever appropriate.

See Engaging with our stakeholder's section in the Strategic report on page 2 for further information on how we engage with our employees.

Charltable Donations and Political contributions
The Company made no charitable donalions or incurred any political expenditure during the year (2021: Nil).;
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Carbon emissions
In line with the government'’s Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECRY) requirements we are required to report our organisation’s carbon
emissions for the year ended 30 June 2022,

Our reporting methodology aligns with Defra’s Environmental reporting guidelines (2019) and uses the government’'s greenhouse gas reporting
conversion factors (2021) to quantify emissions in tonnes of Carbon Dioxide equivalent (tCO2e). Tolal emissions are reported using the financial
control boundary criteria,

For the purposes of evaluating performance to date we have compared our emissions on a like for like basis against the previous year of 2020/21
and baseline year of 2019/20, Please note that the emissions have been re-baselined to remove managed properties (Poole and Thistle
Holborn/Bloomsbury), which are managed by an entity outside of this Group, across all years to allow for direct comparison of emissions between
the years as detailed below.
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Our overall energy use and absolute carbon emissions has increased significantly this year compared to last year (mainly due to the relaxation of
COVID restrictions and increased business activity) a 23,8% increase in Scope 1 and 2 emissions, and a 28.5% increase in total kWh compared to
last year. The greatest increase was in purchased fuel, followed by electricity then natural gas. Our carbon intensity ratios this year have decreased
substantially compared to last year due to a significant increase in both revenue and the number of rooms sold again this is due to the relaxation of
COVID restrictions and an increase in business activity,

Our overall energy use in 2021/2022 compared to the baseline year (which was pre-COVID restrictions) shows a 23% decrease in Scope 1 and
Scope 2 tonnes of carbon, with a similar 16% decrease in total kWh, The greatest decrease is in purchased natural gas followed by electricity, Both
carbon intensity ratios based on revenue and the number of rooms sold increased by 6% and 9% this year compared to the baseline, this is due to
a slightly lower revenue and fewer rooms being sold this year compared fo the baseline as the business has still not fully recovered to pre-covid
levels,

To reduce our carbon emissions, we are continuing to implement energy saving initiatives this year, such as all emergency lighling changing to
LED's and lithium 5-year batteries, In October 2021 we also made the decision to procure renewable energy guarantee of origin backed zero carbon
electricity tariffs to mitigate our Scope 2 carbon emissions.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Risk Management & Internal Controls

The Board recognises the importance of a sound system of intemal controls to safeguard shareholders’ interests and investments and the Group's
assets, and to manage risks; The Board determines the Group’s risk profile and oversees the formulation, Implementation and monitoring of the
Group's internal controls.-Management articulates the Group's risk policies by identifying significant risks which might impact the Group's business.
The Group maintains a Risk Register which is reviewed periodically by the Board and Management of Guoco Group Limited, intermediate parent
of the Group. A risk rating system has been established to identify the tolerance level for the various identified risks and to determine the likelihood
of incidence of such risks. Guidelines and strategies for the mitigation of such risks are set out in the Risk Register. The Board ensures the effective
implementation and monitoring of internal controls by Management and the Internal Audit Department. The Internal Audit Department reports directly
to the Board. The Internal Audit Department adheres to an audit plan approved by the Board in reviewing and testing the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group's internal controls. On an annual basis, an Intemnal Audit and Risk Assurance Report is presented to the Board on significant risks and
risk exposures impacting the Group's key businesses and the measures taken by Management to address them. The Board recognises that no
system of control will provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. However, based on reviews carried out by the Intemal
Audit Department and Management, the Board is of the opinion that the Group's internal controls, including financial, operational, compliance and
information technology controls and risk management systems, are adequate and effective. On 16 December 2022, the Board received assurance
from Mr Jon Scott and Gavin Taylor, who are the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer respectively of the Company, that:

. The financial records of the Company have been properdy maintained and the financial statements for FY2022 give a true and fair view
of the Company's operations and finances; and

. The Company's system of risk management and internal controls is effective in addressing the material risks in its current business
environment including financial, operational, compliance and information technology risks,

Disclosure of information to auditor

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors' report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and each director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director to
make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information,

Auditor
During the year, Haysmacintyre LLP were appointed as the Group and Company's auditors, Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006,
the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and Haysmacintyre LLP will therefore continue in office,

By order of the board
mzﬁ % "

Director

16 December 2022
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the annual report and the financial
statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and Company financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they are required
to prepare the Group financial siatements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the United Kingdom (IFRSs
as adopted by the UK) and applicable law and have elected to prepare the Company financial statements on the same basis.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and Company and of their profit or loss for that year. In preparing each of the Group and Company financial statements, the
directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable;
state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the UK;
assess the Group and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters to going concein;
and

. use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or
t have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financiat
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities, «

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report and Directors’ Report that complies with
that law and those regulations. .

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

K the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole; and

‘. the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the issuer and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they
face.

Shdlgry

Chew Seong Aun

Director

16 December 2022
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Registered Number 002623858

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CLERMONT HOTEL GROUP
LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financia statements of Clermont Hotel Group Limited ('the Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries ("the Group”) for the year
ended 30 June 2022 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and
Company Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated and Parent Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated and Company Statement
of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the Company's financial statements is applicable law and Intarnational
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the UK,

In our opinion, the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and of the Group's loss for the year
then ended,

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008.

Basis for oplnion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) ("!SAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statement saction of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United
Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Conclusi relating to going n

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements Is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's or the Parent Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least 12
months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this repart,,

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than
the financial statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 does not cover
the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinlons on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Group Strategic Report and the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements; and
- the Group Strategic Report and the Directors’' Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. .

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In light of our knowledge and understanding of the Group and Parent Company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have
not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you, if, in our
opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns edequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.



Clermont Hote! Group Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022
Registered Number 00262958

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CLERMONT HOTEL GROUP
LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsmlhtnes statement set out on page 7, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financiat
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and Parent Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditors’ responsibilitias for the audit of the financlal statements

Our objectives are to'obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will aiways detect a material misstatement when it exists Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, induding fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations We design procedures in line with our responsibilities,
outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud The extent to which our procedures are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting Irregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the Company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related
to regulatory requirements for hotel and restaurant businesses, such as minimum wage and food hygiene regulations, and we considered the extent
to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct
impact on the preparation of the financial statements, such as the Companies Act 2008, income tax, payroll tax and sales tax.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was constdered capable of detecting Irregularities, Including fraud (continued)

We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of
controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate journal entiies to revenue and management bias in accounting
estimates Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

-inspecting correspondence with regulators and tax authorities;
- discussions with management and reviewing board minutes for indications of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulation and fraud,
- evaluating management's controls designed to prevent and detect irregularities;
- reviewing sales either side of the year end to ensure that the income has been recognised in the correct financial period;

- Identifying and testing journals, in particular journal entries posted with a round sum value, that significantly impact profit or contain key words;
and; and
- challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their critical accounting estimates, particularly in respect of their assessment
of impairment of the carrying value of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use-assets, the recognition of deferred tax assets, the valuation
of investments in subsidiaries and the recoverability of receivables

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all imegularities, including those leading to a material misstatement
inthe financial statements or non-compliance with regulation This risk increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from
the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance The risk
is also greater regarding irregularities accurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission
or misrepresentation

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporling Council's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Auditors’ Report

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company's shareholders, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's shareholders those métters we are required to state to them in an auditors’
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the Company's shareholders, as a body, for our audit work, for this repor, or for the opinions we have formed

d@««r@

Jessica Edwards (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Haysmacintyre LLP, Statutory Auditor
Statutory Auditors

10 Queen Street Place

London

EC4R 1AG

Date: 19 December 2022
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Consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income

for the year ended 30 June 2022

Revenue

Finance Income

Depreciation

Management fees

Franchise fees

Employee Benefits expense

Finance costs

Professional Fees

Direct expenses

Property management cost

Rooms commissions

Food and beverage cost of sales

Other income

Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Impairment of Fixed Assets and Right-of-use Assets
Provisions made

Other costs

Loss before tax

Taxation credit
Loss for the year

Loss for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

items that will Aot be redassifie

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pensxon plans

Deferred tax (charge)/credit on other comprehensive income

or may.be :
Change in fair value on cashfiow hedge
Deferred tax charge on change in fair value on cash flow hedge

Total comprehensive income for the ysar

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive Income for the year

Year ended
30 June 2022

Note £000's

132,104
147
(27,452)
{11,920}
(963)
(36,787)
(43,148)
(6,429)
(1.174)
(24,393)
(8,334)
(6,978)
8,070
(1,711)
(7,285)
(890)
(11,058)

[N
N oo w

@®H @

“(53187)

9 13,887
: {39,300)

(39,300)

= (39300) -

24 4,040
9 (1,353)

17 2,397
9 (576)

(34,792) -

(34,792)

(34.792;

Year ended
30 June 2021

£000's

13,812
1,851
(28,625)
(501)
(53)
(11.574)
(41,070)
(3,308)
(5.881)
(3,361)
484
(747)
13,107
(751)
(990)
(1,251)
(1,242)

(70.100)

19,445 .
(50,655) .

(50,655)

- (50,655

(710)

677

1,201
(151)

[@9,638)

(49,638)

(49.635; §

There were no items of recognised income or expense other than as shown in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income above.

The accompanying notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated and company statement of financial position

for the year ended 30 June 2022

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries
Right-of-use assets

Deferred tax assets
Derivative financial instrument
Pension benefit surplus

Trade and other receivables
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Income tax receivable

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITES
Shareholders' equity
Share capital

Share premium

Hedging reserve

Retained eamings

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

Non-current liabilitles
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

Derivative financial instrument
Provisions

Total non-current liabllities

Current liabllities
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Income tax payable
Lease liabilities
Provisions

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Note

21
21
22

23

23

Clermont Hotel Group Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022
Registered Number 00262958

Group Company
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
777,485 631,234 - i
. - 668,792 547,497
433,681 497 448 - .-
42,146 32,655 4,328 749
730 - 730 -
12,484 4,801 12,484 4,801
68,279 119,323 72,833 139,027
1,334,806 1,285,461 759,167 B 892,074 ~
816 565 - B
21,145 3,423 i 199
- 1,213 - -
20,947 26,515 17,211 26,546
42,908 31,716 17,582 26,745
1,377,713 1,317,177 » 776,749 ) 718,819
79,855 79,655 79,655 79,655
86,171 10,794 66,171 10,784
549 {1,272) 549 (1,272)
283,958 315,020 245,468 349,804
440,333 464, 197 391,841 438,981
(1,983) (1,983) N -
438,350 402,214 391,841 ] 438,981
192,669 156,342 192,669 166,342
119,409 - 119,409 -
578,982 650,412 i -
B 1,667 . 1,867
6,717 . 5564 6,717 ) 5,564
897,777 813,985 318,786 163,573 .
. 55,331 - 56,331
33,482 28,211 63,056 57,613
1,211 - 2,387 2,387
8,222 16,502 - .
671 934 871 934
41,586 100,978 66,413 116,265
939,383 914,963 384,908 ) 279,838
1,377,713 1317,177 ‘ 778,749 718,819

The Parent Company has taken advantage of the exemplion allowed under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has nat presented its own
Statement of Profit and ioss and other comprehensive income in these financial statements. The loss after tax of the Parent Company for the period

was £107.0m (2021: £24.6m).
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Clermont Hotel Group Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year endsd 30 June 2022
Registered Number 00262958

Consolidated and company statement of financial position
for the year ended 30 June 2022 (continued)

The accompanying notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these finandial statements.

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 16 December 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

o,

“Chew Seong Aun 7

Director

16 December 2022
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Balance at 30 June 2020

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Loss

Other comprehensive income
Deferred Tax on other
comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2021

Yotal comprehensive income for
the year

Loss

Gain on lease disposal (note 12)
Tax charge on lease disposal
Other comprehensive Income
Deferred tax on other
comprehensive income

Issue of capital

Balance at 30 June 2022

Clermont Hotel Group Limited

Annual repart and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022
Registered Number 00262958

Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Balance at 30 June 2020

Total comprehensive income for
Loss

Other Comprehensive income
Deferred Tax on other
comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2021

Total comprehensive income for
Loss

Other comprehensive income
Deferred Tax on other
‘comprehensive income

Issue of capital

Balance at 30 June 2022

-

The accompanying notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Non-
Share Share Hedging Retained Controlling Total
Capital Premium Reserve Earnings Interests
£000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000's
79,655 10,794 (2,322) 365,708 (1.983) 451,852
- - - (50,655) = (50,655)
- - 1,201 (710) x 491
- - (151) 677 - 526
79,655 - 10;794 - (1,272) 315,020 ° - (1,983) T 402,214
o . {39,300) - (39,300)
. . - 19,198 - 19,198
B s (3,647) (3,647)
- - 2,397 4,040 - 6,437
- - (576) {1,353) - (1,929)
- §5,377 - - . 65,377
79,855 66,171 549 293,968 (1,883) 438,350
Share Share Hedging Retained
Capital Premium Reserve Earnings Total
£000’s £000's £000’s £000's £000’s
79,655 10,794 (2,322) 374,412 462,539
. - < (24,575) (24,575)
- - 1,201 (710) 491
- - _ (s 677 . 526
79,655 10,794 (1,272) : 349,804 . 438,881
- B “ (107,025) (107,025)
. - 2,397 4,040 6,437
B - (676) (1,353) {1,929)
- 65,377 - - 56,377
79,855 1-68"17.1 - 549 i 245,466 . 1391!8413

14




Clermont Hotel Group Limited
Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Reglstered Number 00262958
Consolidated and company statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022
Group Company
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£'000 £'000 £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year (39,300) (50.,655) (107,025) (24,575)
Adjustments for:
Taxation {13,887) (19,445) (5,507) (838)
Finance Costs 42,571 40,725 7,594 6,888
Finance income {147 {1,851} {2,066) {3.559)
Impairment of investments - - 36,937 117,574
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 2,176 79 - -
Impairment of right-of-use assets 5110 911 - -
Depreciation 27,452 28,625 i -
Pension fund payments in excess of P&L charge (3,515) (384) (3,516) (384)
Amortisation of debenture fees 575 345 575 345
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 1,711 751 - -
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (251) 41 e -
Decreasef(increase) in trade & other receivables 33,323 (9,494) (91,210) 2,173
(Decrease)iincrease in trade & other payables {34,524) (158) 126,111 (147.608)
Increase in provisions . B9D 1,251 830 1,254
Cash generated from/ (used in) operating 22,183 (9,259) ’ (38,216) (48,731)
activities
Interest paid (41,167) (34,521) (7,514) {6.792)
Tax refund 578 - 578 <
Net Cash used in operating activities " (18,406) T (43,780) (45,152) i (55,523)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (5,239) (2,780) . -
Interest received 19 2 19 2
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing ’ (6,220) (2.778) 19 2
activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of lease liabilities (17,740) (8,029) e -
Drawdown of loan facility 87,000 60,000 87,000 60,000
Repayment of loan facility {51,000) - (61,000) -
Repayment of debentures (55,377) - (55,377) =
Issue of capital 55,377 - 56,377 7
Loan fees paid (202) (158) (202) (158)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing 18,058 51,813 35,798 69,842
activities
Net (decreass)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (5,568) 5,255 (9,335) 4,321
Cash and cash equivalent at the start of the 26,516 21,260 26,546 22,225
year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 20,947 26,515 721 26,546
year .
Trade and other payables includes the following non-cash adjustments:
Tax transferred from related parties 676 - - B
Interest accrued not paid (90) -~ (90) -
Intercompany interest (1,144) 1,761 1,919 3,469
Allccation of Group tax payment arrangement - - (568) +
Property, plant and equipment transfers from related parties (158,645) (160) - -
Trade and other receivables includes the following non-cash ‘acﬁusrmenrs: '
Investment in subsidiary z. -

167,232 __ -

The accompanying notes on pages 16 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Clermont Hotel Group Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022
Registered Number 00262958

Notes to the financial statements

1 - Accounting policies
(A) Basis of preparation

Clermont Hote! Group Limited (the "Company®) is a private company limited by share capital incorporated, domiciled and registered in England in
the UK. The registered number is 00262958 and the registered address is 110 Central Street, London, EC1V 8AJ.

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group®). The Company financial
statements present information about the Company as a separate entity and not about its group.

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the UK ("Adopted IFRSs"). The Company has elected to prepars its Company financial statements in accordance with Adopted
IFRS; these are presented on pages 11 to 43.

On publishing the parent company financial statements here together with the Group financial statements, the Company is taking advantage of the
exemption in 5408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present its individual statement of comprehensive income and related notes that form a part
of these approved financial statements.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements,,

Judgements made by the directors, in the application of these accounting policies that have significant effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 28.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that pericd or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Going Concem

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, as the intermediate parent company, Guoco Group Limited, has given an
undertaking to provide such financial assistance to the Group as is necessary to enabla it to meet its financial obligations as they fall due within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period. As with any company placing reliance on other group entities for financial suppor, the directors
of the Company acknowledge that there can be no certainty that this support will continue although, at the date of approval of these financial
statements, they have no reason to believe that it will not do so.

Clermont Group (Cayman) Limited and its subsidiaries ("the Clermont Group®, which includes the Company) have also prepared consclidated cash
flow forecasts for a period to 30 June 2024 which show the Clermont Group is able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due, The Clermont
Group's debt is maturing in September 2023, which the directors expect to refinance with external debt given the strong balance sheet position of
the Clermont Group. If the Clermont Group is unable to refinance its debt Guoco Group Limited will provide the necessary financial assistance as
noted above,

Based on the above, the directors believe it remains appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis,

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.
These financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors under the historical cost convention and in accordance with Adopted
IFRS.

(B) Changes in accounting polici

Except for the changes below, the Company has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial statements.

The following amendments issued by the IASB that are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 July 2021 have been applied by the Group
and the Company. There has been no significant impact on the Group's and the Company's financial statements:

Internalional Financial Reporting Standards

. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 {Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16);
. COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendment to IFRS 16).

{C) Future cham’;es to accounting standards

There are a number of standards and interpretations issued by the IASB that are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 July 2022 and earlier
application is pemmitted; however, the Group and Company has not early adopted the new or amended standards in preparing these financial
statements,

The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s and the Company's financial
statements:

Internationa! Financial Reporting Stenderds

: Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37);

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16); *
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and |AS 41);
References to Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3);

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to 1AS 1);

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2);

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8);

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12).

s o o 0
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Annual report and financia! statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022
Registered Number 00262958

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
1 - Accounting policies (continued)
(D) Measurement convention

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value as
described below. .

(E) Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries’ are entities controlled by the Group: The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. In assessing control, the Group takes into
consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable. The acquisition date is the date on which contro! is transferred to the acquirer.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from tha date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are aflocated to the non-controlling interests even if doing so
causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance,

Jolnt ArTéngements
A joint arrangement is an arrangement over which the Group and one or more third parties have joint control. These joint arrangements are in turn
classified as:
. Joint ventures whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its
liabilities; and
. Joint operations whereby the Group has rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement.

Eac w L o ma L, -

A {1
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method (equity accounted investees) and are initially recognised at cost. The Group's investment
includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment losses. The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s
share of the total comprehensive income and equity movements of equity accounted investees, from the date that significant influence or joint
control commences until the date that significant influence or joint control ceases. When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity
accounted investee, the Group's carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is disconlinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of an investee.

(F) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated.. Unrealised
losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment:

Separate company financial statements.
In the Company financial statements, all investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less impairment.
(G) Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or deemed cost less depreciation and any necessary provision for accumulated impairment,

Depreciation is provided in equal instalments to write off property, plant and equipment to their estimated residual value over their expected useful
economic lives on a straight line basis. The principal expected useful economic lives are:

Freehold Land Not depreciated
Core elements of freehold buildings Up to 100 years
Integral plant and non-core elements of buildings 15to 30 years
Pilant and equipment & fit out cost 3to 15 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.
(H) Leases
As alessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term # (defined as | with a
lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture and
telephones). For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed..

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using
the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
. Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;
. The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
. The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
. Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
1 - Accounting pollcles (continued)
(H) Leases (continued)

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount te reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest
method) and by reducing the carrying amount to refiect the lease payments made,

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

. The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the assessment of
exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate.

. The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value,
in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless
the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

. A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group made a remeasurement in the current year of £20,786,000 (2021: £2,823,000):

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencemant
day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses;

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the right-of-use asset. If a lease transfers ownership of
the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease;

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
Impairment loss as described in the ‘Impairment excluding inventories and deferred tax assets' policy.

The Group has applied the practical expedient retrospectively to all rent concessions that meet the conditions in IFRS 16:46B and has not restated
prior period figures.

In the previous year the Group benefited from a 9-month partial lease payment holiday on buildings. The payment holiday reduced payments in the
period to 21 June 2021 by £9,132,000 and increases payments in the period to 21 June 2022 by the same amount,

In the previous year the Group remeasured the lease liability using the revised lease payments and the discount rate originally applied to the lease,
resulting in a decrease in the lease liability of £493,000, which has been recognised as a negative finance lease interest expense in profit or loss.
The Group continued to recognise interest expense on the lease liability.

As a lessor

The Group assesses the classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset. All of the Group's recognised sub-leases have been
assessed to fall as operating leases under IFRS 16. Income is therefore recognised on a straight-line basis through the profit and loss,

() Inventories

Inventories comprise food, beverages, Hard Rock shop merchandise and retail vouchers for resale and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value after making due allowance for any obsolete or slow moving items.

Cost is based on the first-in first-out principle that includes expenditure incurred In acquiring the inventories and other costs in bringing them to their
existing location and condition,

(J) Ciassification of financial instruments

Following the adoption of IAS 32, financial instruments issued by the Company are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the following
two conditions:

(a) they indude no contractual obligations upon the Company to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the company; and

{b) where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company's own equity instruments, it is either a non-derivative that includes no
obligation to deliver a variable number of the company’s own equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settied by the Company's
exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments, To the extent that this
definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the instrument so classified takes the legal form
of the company’'s own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements for called up share capital and share premium
account exclude amounts in relation to those shares.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the instrument so classified takes the

legal form of the company's own shares, the amounts presentedin these financial statements for called up share capital and share premium account
exclude amounts in relalion to those shares.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
1~ Accounting policies (continued)
(K) Classification of non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivalive financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables..

Inf
Interest-bearing borrowmgs are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs: Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

{Trede and other payables are recognised initially at fair value, Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.,

Cash and.cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose only of the cash flow statement..

RP—— eaiily seciities
Debentures are staled at amomsed cost less impairment, Financial instruments held for trading are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss.

{L)} Ciassification of derlvative financia! instruments
The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures,

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value and any directly attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred, Subsequent
to initia) recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes thersin are generally recognised in profit or loss.

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments In qualifying hedging relationships. At inception of designated hedging
relationships, the Group documents the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Group also documents the
economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged item and
hedging instrument are expected to offset each other.

(M) Cash flow hedge

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows associated with highly probable forecast
transactions arising from changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates.

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised
in other comprehenswe income (“OCI") and accumulated in the hedging reserve. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative
that is recognised in OCl is limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item, determined on a present value basis, from inception
of the hedge. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold, expires, is terminated or is exercised, then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospechvely When hedge accounting for cash flow hedges is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in
the hedging reserve remains in equity until, for a hedge of a transaction resulting in recognition of a non-financial item, it is included in the non-
financial item’s cost on its initial recognition or, for other cash flow hedges, it Is reclassified to profit or loss in the same period or periods as the
hedged future cash flows affect profit or loss.

If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have been accumulated in the hedging reserve and is
immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

The Group early adopted the amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform issued in September 2020 as part of its
project on interest rate benchmark reform. Under the temporary exemptions from applying specific hedge accounting requirements, Interbank
Offered Rates (“IBOR") are assumed to continue unaltered for the purposes of hedge accounting unti! such time as the uncertainty is resolved. For
the purpose of evaluating whether the hedging relationship is expected to be highly effective (i.e. prospective effectiveness assessment), the Group
assumes that the benchmark interest rate is not altered as a result of IBOR reform. The Group will cease to apply the amendments to its retrospective
and prospeclive effectiveness assessment of the hedging relationship when the uncertainty arising from interest rate benchmark reform is no longer
present with respect to the t|m|ng and the amount of the interest rate benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or hedging instrument, or
when the hedging relationship is discontinued. However, as at 30 June 2022, the uncertainty continued to exist and so the temporary exemptions
apply to all of the Group’s hedge accounting relationships that reference benchmarks subject to reform or replacement,

{N) Impairment of non-derivative financial assets

The Group uses an expected credit loss (“ECL") mode!l. The impairment mode! applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost but not to
equity investments. The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal! to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost of effort, This includes quantitative and
qualitative information, analysis based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment, that includes forward looking
information,’

The Group assumes that the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due,
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
1~ Accounting policles (continued)
(N) Impairment of non-derivative financial assets {conlinued)}

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:
- the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions; or
- The financial asset is more than 90 days past due,

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.- The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECL's are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses, Credit losses are measured at the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e the difference
between the cash flows due 1o the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-
impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cashflows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financisl asset is credit impaired includes the fallowing observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract such as a default or being than 80 days past due;
- it is probable the debtor will enter bankruptcy or ather financial reorganisation; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets,

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its
entirety or a portion thereof. The Group makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off for each customer based on
whether there Is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount wiitten off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(0) Impairment of non-financlal assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other {han inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using e pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets thet generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit® or "CGU").

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in profit or loss, Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated to reduce the carnrying amounts of assets in the unit
(group of units) on a pro rata basis.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indicalions that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
deprecialion or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

{P) Provislons

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resuit of a past
event that can be reliably measured, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability,

(Q) Revenue

Revenue from hotel operations is in the profit and loss at the point at which room and related services are provided. Revenue from hotel operations
includes income earned from sales of food and beverages, meetings and events income, shop merchandise sales and other misceilaneous income,
No reveniie is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration, The Group’s shop merchandise sales revenue
is recognised when the goods are accepted by customers at the shop. All revenue is éxcluding VAT and is generated in the UK,

(R) Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity. Current tax
is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years..

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes, The following temporary differences are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business combination, and differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse In the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
1 - Accounting policles (continued)
(S) Financing income and costs

Financing costs comprise interest payabls, finance charges on shares classified as liabilities and finance leases, unwinding of the discount on
provisions, and net foreign exchange losses that are recognised in the income statement. Financing income comprise interest receivable on funds
invested, dividend income, and net foreign exchange gains.

Interest income and interest payable is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, using the effective interest method: Dividend income is recognised
in the income statement on the date the entity’s right to receive payments is established. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net
basis,

{T) Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to sterling at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the statement of financial position date are retranslated to sterling at the foreign exchange rate ruling
at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the income statement, Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction, Non-monetary
assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are retranslated to sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was determined,

(U) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an
expense in the income statement in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

(V) Defined benefit pension schemes

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Group's net obligation in respect of defined
benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in return for their service
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, The fair value of any plan agsets is deducted. The Group
determines the net interast expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit liability (asset), adjusted for employer contributions
paid into the Scheme,

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on AA credit rated bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group's
obligations and that are denominated in the cumency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

A formal actuarial valuation is performed at least once every three years by a qualified actuary and informal valuations are carried out in the
intervening years using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is limited to
the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. In
order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements that apply to any plan in the
Group. An economic benefit is available to the Group if it is realisable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities,

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liabllity comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the
effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest). The Group recognises them immediately in OC! and all expenses related to defined benefit
plans In employee benefits expense in profit or loss,

When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past service by employees, or
the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs,

The Group recognises gains and losses on the settiement of a defined benefit plan when the seftlement occurs, The gain or loss on setilement is
the difference between the present value of the defined benefit obligation being settled as determined on the date of settlement and the settlement
price, including any plan assets transferred and any payments made directly by the Group in connection with the settlement,

(W) Retirement banefit costs

Payments to defined contribution pension schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due. For defined benefit pension schemes, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method, with informal actuarial valuations being carded out at each
balance sheet date.. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they occur. They are recognised outside the income
statement and are presented in OCI,

Both current and past service costs are the amounts recognised in the income statement, reflecting the expense asscciated with the individuals,,
Current service cost represents the increase in the present value of the scheme liabilities expected to arise from employee service in the current
period. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested. Gains and losses on curtailments or
settiements are recognised in the income statement in the period in which the curtailment or settlement occurs,

The refirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligations as adjusted for
unrecognised past servica costs, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past
service cost, plus the present value of available refunds (which is only recognised to the extent that the Group has an unconditional right to receive
it) and reductions in future contributions to the scheme, To the extent that an economical benefit is available as a reduction in future contributions
and there is a minimum funding requirement required of the Group, the ecanemic benefit available as a reduction in contributions is calculated as
the present value of the estimated future service cost in each year, less the estimated minimum funding contributions required in respect of the
future accrual and benefits in the year.

(X) Government grants
The Group recognises government grants related to income in the period that the expense is incurred.

The Group has adopted to deduct income related govemment grants from the relevant expense in the statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income.

There are no unfulfilled conditions attached to the govemment grants recognised in the period,
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1 - Accounting policies (continued)
{Y) Franchise fees
Expenses from franchise fees are recognised in the profit or loss at the point in which the fees are due, based on the underlying franchise agreement.
2 - Operating Segments
The Group operates the following brands: Guoman, The Clemmont, Amba, Thistie, Thistle Express and Hard Rock. All hotels are operated in or

around the London area and there is no one customer that represents a material proportion of the Group's total revenues:In the current year, the
Marble Arch hotel have been rebranded to the Thistle brand (2021: Amba).

Profit and loss statement for the year ended 30 June 2022

Thistle,
The Thistle Hard

Guoman Clermont Amba Express Rock Central Total

£000's £000’s £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Revenue 39,911 19,815 . 48,816 23,862 . 132,104

Depreciation (6,002) (3,309) e {10,834) {7,307) = {27,452)

Management fees (3,678) {1,890) - (4,643) {1,531) {178) (11,920)

Employee benefit expense (11,466) {6,063) .. {12,234) .{8,016) (8) (36,787)

Net finance costs (3,611) (101) {10,629) (22,654) {6,104) (42,999)

Other costs (15,964) (7,014) o (26,324) {13,480) (3,351) (66,133)

(Loss)/profit before tax ®10) 2138 T T (15848) (29,026) 9681 (63.187)

Tax (expense)/credit o (573) (375) . . B 12,010 . ; (21§§’2) S,SOZ 13,887

(Loss)/profit for the year T {1,383) 1,783 - .0~ - (3,838) - (31,708) {4,134) {39,300)

Profit and loss statement for the year ended 30 June 2021
Thistle,
The Thistle Hard

Guoman Clermont Amba Express Rock Central Total

£000’s £000’s £000’s £000's £000’s £000’s £000's

Revenue 4,991 908 1,689 4,359 1,865 - 13,812

Depreciation (6,628) (3,300) (2,533) (8,652) (7,512) e (28,625)

Management fees (189) (12) (22) (95) ®) (175) (501)

Employee benefit expense (3,435) (1.677) (1.200) (3.465) (1.781) (16) (11.574)

Net finance costs (4,378) (46) (173) (10,364) (20,584) (3,674) (39,219)

Other Incomel(costs) 1678 466 1,069 (3,338) (2,565) (1,303) (3,993)

Loss before tax ) (7.861) e (3,651) (0 T (21,555)° * (30,585)" ) (5,168) - (70,100)

Tax c_redlt l{expense) 3,337 (646) (427) 5113 11,230 838 18,445
Loss for the year . (4624) & (4,307) i (1,597) ) (16,442) 7 {19,355) " ~ o (4,330) "(50,655)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2 - Operating Segments (continuad)

Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Pension benefit surplus
Derivative financial instrument
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
Trade and other receivables

Current assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Non-current liabifities
Bormrowings

Lease Liabllities

Provisions

Trade and other payables
Current liabilities

Lease Liabilities

Provisions

Income tax
Trade and other payables

Net assets/(labilities)

Statement of fi ial

Clermont Hotel Group Limited
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P

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Pension benefit surplus
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
Trade and other receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Income tax

Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current liabliities

Borrowings

Lease Liabilities

Derivative financial instrument
Provisions

Current liabilitles
‘Borrowings
'Lease Liabilities

Provisions
Trade and other payables

Net assets/(liabilities)

Thistie,
The Thistle Hard

Guoman Clermont Amba Express Rock Central Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000’s £000’s

345,939 161,654 - 228,726 41,166 K 777,485

8,530 . - 104,041 321,110 - 433,681

- .- < . . 12,484 12,484

730 730

2,027 (1.173) - 19,485 17,469 4,328 42,146

= - . - 68,279 68,279

131 80 : 105 500 . 816

13,482 8,402 . 68,120 3,914 (62,773) 21,145

612 704 . 1,698 722 17,211 20,847

- - = K - (192,669) (192,669)

(8,541) - - (166,356) {404,085) - (678,982)

. . - - - (6,717) (6,717)

- - - - - (119,409) {119,409)

(32) . = {5,282) (908) - (6,222)

& 2 . : 5 (671) (671)

(5,812) (730) . 192 7,526 (2,387) {1,211)

(28,168) {9,454) . {40,684) {81,260) 126,074 {33,482)

328,168 169463 . 200,055 _ (93,838) . _ (165520) 438,350

ition as at 30 June 2021
Thistle,
The Thistle Hard

Guoman Clermont Amba Express Rock Central Total

£000's £000's £000’s £000's £000's £000’s £000's

218,595 164,497 171,376 34,011 42,755 = 831,234

62,169 < 2474 127,815 304,990 - 497,448

S i3 S nel - 4,801 4,801

46 (1.576) (2,450) 9,961 26,835 (161) 32,655

- ‘. - - e 119,323 119,323

80 41 17 27 385 15 565

141 503 339 42,562 (785) (39,337) 3423

144 336 47) 2,333 842 (2,395) 1,213

10 (64) (89) 93 22 26,543 26,515

S - . = < (156,342) (156,342)

(73,291) R (3.462) (187,755) (385,904) “ (650,412)

- . . N - (1,667) (1,667)

e - - = - (5.564) (5.564)

. K .5 s ) (55.331) (55,331)

(3,489) - ) (6,926) (6.,085) : (18,502)

e . = e = (934) (934)

(10,114) (5,747) (2,845) (19,577) (41,040) 50,912 (28,211)
184201 157,990 165,511 2544 (57,985) (60,137) 202214~
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
3-Revenue

Revenue consists of the following revenue streams:

Rooms revenue
Food and beverage
Meetings and events
Others

4 - Expenses and Auditor’s Remuneration

The Group's loss before tax includes the following:

Auditors remuneration:
Audit of the Company’s financial statements
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries
Pension Scheme audit — defined benefit scheme
Audit-related assurance services

Depreciation of fixed assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Impairment of fixed assets

Impairment of right-of-use assets

Equipment rentals payable under operating leases

5 - Employee, Directors and Key Management information

Employee costs during the year:

Agency wages

Employee wages and salaries

Employer’s social security costs
* Employer's pension costs

Government grant

Average monthly staff employed:
Hotel Operaling Staff (excluding agency)

Clermont Hotel Group Limited

Annual report and financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2022
Registered Number 00262958

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£000's £000's

94,835 6,654

18,892 2,842

7,042 624

11,136 3,692
132,108 - ' 13812_

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£000's £000's

29 42

306 378

15 13

5 5

13,746 14,032

13,706 14,593

2175 79

5110 911

] 124

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£000's £000's

13,480 754

21,274 17,656

1,798 1,388

5§30 528

(295) (8,752)
36,787 7

937 T 932

All employees are employed by Clermont Hotel Management Limited or Clermont Hotel HR Limited and a recharge is made by these companies in

respect of the persons employed by each hotel.

Government grant income received is from the Govemment's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. This allowed the Group to reclaim an element
of wages and salarles, social security and pension costs for empioyees who were furloughed after March 2020. This scheme ended on 30

September 2021..,

The expenses for employers' pension costs include expenses related to the defined contribution schemes..

The directors are remunerated for their services to the Group as a whole which is disclosed [n the financial statements of Clermont Hotel
Management Limited and GL Limited. An amount of £71,000 (2021: £116,000) has been apportioned to the Group based on the services performed
by directors for the individual undertakings within the Group. Directors are considered to be the key management personnel.:
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

6 - Finance income

Year ended ..Year ended

30 June 2022 *30:June. 2021

£000’s £000's:

Bank interest received 9 2

Other interest recelved 10 -

Interest from immediate parent company - 1,761

Net income on retirement benefit obligations 128 88
47 - 1851

7 - Finance Costs

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 -30 June 2021
£000's ~.£000's
Debenture stock and loan interest 7,310 6,828
Amortisation of debenture fees 676 345
Lease liability interest {note 12) 33,833 33,837
interest paid to parent company of the Clermont 1144 ’ -

Group
Other finance costs 284 60
43,148 41,070

8 - Loss from Disposals of Property, Plant and Equipment

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£000's £000's
Loss ‘on disposal (1,711) (751)
(1,711} ~ . ) . (751)
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

9 - Taxation
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£000’s £000's
Recognised in the statement of profit or loss
UK Corporation tax
Current tax on loss for the year {1,722) (686)
Adjustments in respect of previous years {1,266) . (325) .
Current tax credit {2,988) (1,011) .
Deferred taxation
Current year tax credit (10,818) (12,049)
Adjustments in respect of previous years 3,318 882
Effect of changes in tax rates on:
Leases 132 . (7.590)
Other deferred tax assets and liabilities ; {3,631) . 323 -
Deferred tax credit ) {10,899) . (18,434) ..
Actual tax credit r gnised in the stat nt of profit or loss . - {13,887) (19.445)
Recognised in Other Comprehensive incoms
Deferred tax on pension surplus (1,353) (410)
Deferred tax on losses - (267)
Deferred tax credit on other comprehensive income :' ~ " {1,363) - (677)
Actual tax credit recognised In other comprehensive i : (1363 — 77
Recognised in Equity
Cument tax charge on lease disposal 3,647 i -
Current tax charge recognised in equity 3,647 -
Deferred tax on interest rate swap . (576) 151
Deferred tax (credit)/charge on swap (678) 151
Actua! tax credit recognised in equity 3,071 » P 151 )
Reconciliation of Effective tax rate % Year ended % Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£000’s £000's
Loss before tax for the year 100.0 (53,187) 100.0 (70,100)
+ 1 .
" Expected tax credit at 19.0% (2021: 19.0%) 19.0 (10,118) 19.0 (13,319)
Adjustments in respect of previous years (3.9) 2,062 (0.8) 557
Items not subject to tax or deductible for tax (0.5) 287 (0.2) 113
purposes
Income not taxable - i - =
Tax rate changes:
Leases (0.2) 132 10.8 (7,590)
Other 6.6 (3,531) (0.5) 323
Amounts not recognised (0.9 491 0.7) 471
Corporate Interest restriction ) 6.0 (3;200)
Actual tax credit 26.1 {13,887) ° ) 27.6 -~ (19,445)

On 24 May 2021 a change to the future corporation tax rate was substantively enacted. The corporation tax rate is to increase from 19% to 25%
for the tax years starting on or after 1 April 2023. The deferred tax assets and liabilities at 30 June 2021 have been calculated based on these rates:
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10 - Property, plant and equipment
Group
Land and Fit out costs, Total
buildings plant and
equipment
£000's £000's £000's
Cost
At the beginning of the year 674,346 212,404 886,750
Additions 663 4,576 5,239
Transfers 187,706 . 187,708
Disposals (3,423) {11,832) {15,255)
At the end of the year . 859.282' ’ '205;148 ’1|084|'440-*,.
Depreciation
At the beginning of the year 94,683 160,934 255,517
Charge for the year 6,737 7,008 13,748
Disposals {2,661) (10,883) (13,544)
impairments 487 1,688 2,176
Transfers . 20061.. . i 29,081
At the end of the year 128,207 158,748 } 286,955
Net book value )
As at 30 June 2022 " 731,085 48,400 . __ 777,485 °
Group
Land and Fit out costs, Total
buildings plant and
equipment
£000's £000's £000's
Cost
At the beginning of the year 666,335 223,670 890,005
Additions 1,538 1,242 2,780
Transfers 160 - 160
Reclasslfications 6,519 (6.519) -
Disposals (208) . (5,989) (6,195)
At the end of the year 674,346 212,404 ' 886,750 |
Depreciation
At the beginning of the year 86,602 160,247 246,849
Charge for the year 6,908 7.124 14,032
Disposals (170) (5.274) (5,444)
Impairments 45 34 79
Reclassifications 1,197 (1,197) . -
At the end of the year 94,582 .., 160,934 255,516
Net book value — e - -
As at 30 June 2021 579, 764 oo 51,470 °

631,234 -

In the previous financial year one property with aggregate carrying value of £98,768,000 was charged as security for the Group's debanlure
borrowing facilities. No property was charged as security in the current financial year.

Transfers in the year ended 30 June 2022 are from related parties GLH RHG Limited and GLH KG Limited. Transfers in the year ended 30 June
2021 are from related party Clermont Hotel Management Limited. The transfers were at net book value resulting in no gain or loss.,

At 30 June 2022, the Group's properties were assessed for indications of impairment.

The recoverable amount of the property is determined from a value in use calculation or fair value less costs to sell. In the value in use calculation
the key assumptions used are in relation to discount and growth rates and replacement capex. Growth rates incorporate occupancy, room rate,
volume and direct cost changes. Growth rates took into account external views of the London hote! market and the likely time of continuing recovery
from the current economic environment, Management used a pre-tax discount factor ranging from 7.50%-10.52% (2021: 7,39%-9.17%) over the
forecast period, 4% of revenue was deemed an appropriate rate for replacement capex for the Company, based on the hotel operating agreements
for hotels operated by the wider group. As a result, an impairment of £2,175,000 (2021: £79,000) was recorded in relation to the Hyde Park hotel,
as noted in the Strategic Report on page 1.

Prior year reclassification: £6,519,000 of assets previously categorised under fit out costs, plant and equipment were reclassified to Land and
Buildings with associated depreciation of £1,197,000, Following a review it was deemed more appropriate to reclassify these assets as the assets
were land & building in nature. This is a presentation only adjustment, and the assets had been depreciated appropriately.

Disposals during the year related to the disposal of assets across the Group. Prior year disposals were of assets in The Hard Rock Hotel (London)
Limited.

When performing the impairment review the relevant growth rates included were specific to each operating site. The pracess of determining these

rates is discussed in note 28. This analysis took into account external visws of the London hotel market and the likely time of continuing recovery
from the current economic environment.
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11~ Investm in subsidiarles
Company
Cost
At the beginning of the financial year
Additions

At the end of the financial year

Clermont Hotel Group Limited

Annual report and financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022
Registered Number 00262958

2022
£000's

870,010
157,232

1,027,242

Impairment

At the beginning of the financial year 322,513

Impairment made during the financial year 35,937

At the end of the financial year 358450 ¢

Net book value as at 30 June 2022 €68,797...

2021

£000's

Cost

At the beginning of the financial year 803,347

Additions 86,663

At the end of the financia) year 870,010

Impairment

At the beginning of the financial year 204,939

Impairment made during the financial year 117,574

At the end of the financia! year '1 322,513

Net book value as at 30 June 2021 547,497

The Company holds 100% of the ordinary shares in the following companies:

Bloomsbury Hotel (London) Limited The Grosvenor Hotel Victoria Limited The Cumbenrand Hote! (London) Limited

Euston Hotel (London) Limited Clermont Hotel Group Limited Barbican Hotel (London) Limited
Piccadilly Hotel (London) Limited The Charing Cross Hotel Limited Thistle Edinburgh Tenant Limited
Kensington Gardens Hotel (London) Limited Heathrow Hotel (London) Limited Clermont Hotel HR Limited

The Royal Horseguards Hotel Limited The Wiltshire Hotel (Swindon) Limited Trafalgar Hote! (London) Limited
The Strathmore Hotel (Luton) Limited Marble Arch Hote! (London) Limited Hyde Park Hotel (London) Limited

All of the companies are registered and incorporated in the United Kingdom. The registered address for all the companies is 110 Central Street,
London, EC1V BAJ. -

The Company is a 50% member of the limited liability partnership in the Grand Imperial Restaurant LLP but holds a casting vote. This has been
consolidated as a subsidiary in the Group accounts. The registered address for Grand Imperial Restaurant LLP is 110 Centra! Street, London,
EC1V 8Al,

The directors have performed a formal assessment of the carrying value of the cost of investment in subsidiary undertakings. The directors
compared the value in use of each of the subsidiary undertakings, from the calculations in the property, plant and equipment impairment assessment
detailed in note 10, to the carrying value of the investment in the subsidiary. See note 10 for details on key assumptions in the value in use
calculations. As a result of this assessment, an impairment was recorded against the Company's investment in Heathrow Hote! (London) Limited,
Hyde Park Hotel (London) Limited, Piccadilly Hotel (London) Limited and The Roya! Horseguards Hotel (London) Limited. In the previous year an
impairment was recorded against the Company'’s investment in Heathrow Hotel (London) Limited, Trafalgar Hotel (London) Limited, Hyde Park
Hotel (London) Limited, Barbican Hotel (London) Limited, The Cumberland Hotel (London) Limited, The Strathmore Hotel (Luton) Limited and The
Wiltshire Hotel (Swindon) Limited.

12 - Leases

Group

Right-of-use assets comprise of leased assets that do not meet the definition of investment property. .

The Group lease many assets, including land and buildings, IT equipment and other office furniture and equipment. Information about leases for
which the Group is a lessee is presented below. Only land and building leases have been accounted for as a right-of-use assets whilst the other
leases are short term and have been treated as operating leases.

Right-of-use assets

Property Total
As at 30 June 2022 £000's £000’s
Balance as at 1 July 2021 497,449 497,449
Additions 29,342 29,342
Disposals (74,294) (74,284)
Depreciation charge for the year (13,706) (13,706)
Impairment charge (5,110) (6,110)
Balance as at 30 June 2022 ) 453,631 . 433,681
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

12 - Leases (Group as lessee) (continued)

Property Total
As at 30 June 2021 £000's £000's
Balance as at 1 July 2020 510,129 510,129
Additions 2,823 2,823
Depreciation charge for the year (14,593) (14,593)
Impairment charge {911) (811)
Balance as at 30 June 2021

497,448

497,448

Additions In the year relate to a remeasurement, as a resuit of a change in the future lease payments under the lease of £20,786,000 (2021:
£2,823,000) and the novation of an external property lease from related party GLH RHG Limited to The Royal Horseguards Hotel Limited of
£8,556,000 as part of the restructuring exercise which took place on 7 April 2022.

Disposals in the year relate to the termination of leases held with related pariies GLH RHG Limited and GLH KG Limited on 7 April 2022, This
resulted in a gain of £19,198,000 (net of lease liability release of £93,492,000) which was recognised directly within equity, as the transaction is
directed by the intermediate parent entity, Clermont Group (Cayman) Limited, and reflects a transaction with shareholders and sister company.-

Depreciation charge for the year is on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the underlying lease. Impairment charge relates to the right-
of-use assets of the Hyde Park hotel following the Group's impairment assessment, See note 28 for details on key judgements and estimates in

{ation to this nent.
Lease liabilitles

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£000's £000's

Current 6,222 16,502
Non-current 578,982 650,412
585,204 666,914

Matunity Analysis 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£000's £000's

Less than one year 37,884 50,334
One to five years 142,838 176,816
More than five years 1,767,171 1,798,516
Total undiscounted lease liabilities . 1,847,893 2,026,666

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within the Group's treasury
function.

The leases operated by the Group contain extension options, enforceable and exercisable by the Group, up to one year before the end of the non-
cancellable contract period. Where practical, the Group seeks to include extension options in new leases to provide operational flexibility: The
Group assesses at lease commencement whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. The Group reassesses whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise the option if there is a significant event or significant change in circumstances within its control. The lease liability
would increase by £45,028,000 (2021: £42,842,000) if all future lease extension options had been included within the Group's year-end lease

liability.
Amounts recognised in Profit and Loss

The following amounts have been recognised in profit or loss:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£000's £000’s

Interest on lease liabilities {33,833) (33,837)

Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets 9,118 3,388

Expenses relating to short-term leases {9) 4
Expenses relating to low-value assets, excluding short term leases of low-

value assets - (120)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2022 30 June 2021

£000's £000's

Repayment of lease liabilities (17,740) (8,029)

Interest paid on lease liabilities {33,653) (27,729)

Total cash outflow for leases {61,393) (35,758)
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12 - Leases {Group as lessee) (continued)

The Group leases land and buildings for its hotels, The leases of hotel space run for periods between 7 and 146 years. The nature of the lease
agreements contain extension and renewal options. The options to renew the leases will be on the same basis of the original contract term. The
leases stipulate that the properties are to be used as a hotel. There are no residual value guarantees on the leased properties.

The lease arrangements do not contain
price indices,

iable lease payments, h , are subject to rent review in line with market conditions and consumer

The Group leases various IT equipment and office machinery, with lease terms ranging between one and five years, These leases are short-term
and/or leases of low-value items. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these leases,

13 - Inventories

Food Beverage Retail Total
Inventory Inventory Inventory
£000's £000's £000's £000's
Group
Cost
At the beginning of the year 91 193 281 565
Purchases 5,082 2133 245 7,460
Utilised during the year {4,989) {1,989) {231) {7,209)
Atthe end of the year 184 337 298 816
As at 30 June 2021
Cost
At the beginning of the year 91 232 283 606
Purchases 540 168 56 764
Utilised during the year (540) (207) (58) (805)
Atthe end of the year 91 193 281 565
All inventories held are expected to be utilised within 12 months. -
14 - Trade and other recelvables
Group Company
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Current Assets
Trade receivables 5,460 2,494 - -
Provision for bad debt (1,812) (1,978) - =
Net trade receivables 3,648 ° 516 - kS
Other receivables 2,947 2,607 371 199
Prepayments 5,059 244 - -
Accrued income 9,491 56 H :
21,145 3,423 37 199
Group Company
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Non-Current Assets
Amounts owed by subsidiaries -2 == 4,554 19,704
Amounts owed by related parties 15,178 12,168 15,178 12,168
Amounts owed by Immediate parent company 53,101 107,141 53,101 107,141
Amounts owed by parent company of the - 14 - 14
= Clermont Group o .
68,279 119,323 72,833 139,027
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14 - Trade and other receivables (continued)
Amounts owed by related parties, immediate parent company and parent company of the Clermont Group have been categorised as non-current
assets as there is no intention for the Group and Company to recover these balances within 12 months, Amounts owed by subsidiaries have been
categorised by the Company as non-current assets for the same reason.

In the prior year financial statements corporation tax recelvable was disclosed within the trade and other recelvables note. This has been shown in
a separate line in the comparatives of the current year statement of financial position.

Accrued income includes £8,070,000 of accrued insurance income, See note 27 for details.
Prepayments mainly include prepaid rent of £4,908,000 (2021: Enil):

Amounts owed by subsidiaries to the Company is net of a £122,682,000 provision (2021: £55,626,000).
See note 20 for details of the Group's expected credit loss assessment.

16 - Trade and other payablas

Group Company
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Non current liabllities:
Amount owed to parent company of the 119,409 - 119,409 -
Ciermont Group
119,409 ] - 119,409 ° o -
Group Company
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Current liabllitles
Trade payables 8,694 3,461 e -
Other taxation and social security 4,804 1415 248 370
Other payables 20,813 12,931 3,051 4,904
Amounts owed to subsidiaries - - 68,808 43,141
Amounts owed to related parties 948 9,198 948 9,198
Accruals 223 1206 - B ]
» 33,482 : 28,211 63,055 ' 57,613,

In the prior year financial statements corporation tax payable was disclosed within the trade and other payables note, This has been shown in a
separate line in the comparatives of the current year statement of financial position,

Amount owed to parent company of the Clermont Group relate to fixed rate loan notes repayable at par on 30 June 2024, Interest rate on the loan
notes is 4.2%.

Prior year accruals mainly include accrued rent of £1,265,000,

16 ~ Borrowings

Group Company
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Non-current
Unsecured bank loan 192,669 _ 156,342 . te2669 156,342
i92.669 i 156,342 192,669 156,342
Group Company
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Current
7.875% fixed rate debenture stock — repayable June 2022 - 55,331 - 55,331
A ; 55331

== T s, - - = = T

The unsecured £250m facility has a maturity date of September 2023 and is split across three facilities. The interest rate ranges from 1.12% plus
Sonia plus 0.1193% spread to 1,65% plus Sonia plus 0.1193% spread. £193,0m of the facility was drawn-down as at 30 June 2022 (2021: £157. Oom).:
During the current financial year, £51.0m of the loan was repaid (2021: Nil), and £87.0m was drawn-down (2021: £60.0m). Further repayments
were made after the balance sheet date, see note 27, £0.2m of loan amendment fees (2021: £0.2m) were paid during the year. During the financial
year no loan fees were capitalised (2021: £0.3m).

The fixed debenture stock which was listed on the London Stock Exchange was repaid during the year: The Company issued shares of £55.4m to
its immediate parent company to cover repayment of the debenture stock.
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17 - Derivative Financial Instrument

. Group Company
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2022 30 June 2021
(Asset)/liability £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Interest rate swaps (730) 1,667 (730) 1,667
(730) 1,667 (730) - s 1,667

For purpose of hedging the change in interest rates in respect of the variable-rate bank loan, the Company has entered into hedges.

As a result of extension of loan maturily date from 16 December 2019 to September 2023, two forward interest rate swaps with total nominal value
of £75m (2021: £75m) and matching tenors to repayment due dates of the last two tranches of the loan (i.e. tenors of 33 months and 45 months)
were entered into by the Company. These forward interest rate swaps require the Company to pay a fixed interest and receive a variable rate equal
to LIBOR on the notional amount, The interest rate swaps are valued using valuation technique with market observable inputs, The valuation
technique is swap model, using present value calculations, which incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of counterparty, interest rate
and forward rate curve.

The Group’s and the Company's exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks and fair value information related to derivative
financial instruments are disclosed in Note 20.

18 - Provisions

Group and Company
Legacy
Lease Total
As at 30 June 2022 £000's £000’s
Balance as at 1 July 2021 6,498 6,498
Provisions made during the year 890 890
Balance as at 30 June 2022 7,388 7,388
Legacy
Lease Total
As at 30 June 2021 £000’s £000's
Belance as at 1 July 2020 5,247 5,247
Provisions made during the year 1,251 1,254
Balance as at 30 June 2021 6,498 6.498
Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2022 June 2021
£000's £000's
Current 671 934
Non-current 8,717 5,564
7,388

Provision for legacy lease

6,498

During the prior year, the Company received demands under guarantee obligations for two hotel leases which were assigned out of the Group in
previous years, The relevant properties were leased to another subsidiary of the Company ("Subsidiary A®). The claimant is a previous lessee of
the relevant properties and had assigned the lease to Subsidiary A in 1989. The Company provided a guarantee in favour of the claimant
(‘Guarantee”) when leases were assigned by the claimant to Subsidiary A,

Subsidiary A assigned the leases to third parties in 2003 and was voluntarily dissolved in 2008.

Under UK law, a landlord may require the previous tenant of a properly to assume liability under a lease for the property which came into existence
prior to 1996 if the current tenant does not perform its obligations.

The current tenants of the Properlies have dissolved, and the landlord has demanded that the claimant pay such rent and other amounts due under
the leases. In turn, the claimant made a claim against the Company under the Guarantee for such rent and other amounts. The rent is about
£450,000 per annum, subject to rent review at intervals, and the leases have remaining term of approximately 46 years,

Whilst the validity of the Guarantee has not been tested in court, as the Company may be required to meet rent and other amounts payable under
the leases, the Company and Group has provided £7,388,000 (2021: £6,498,000) for &ll future rents on these leases,

During the year an agreement was signed by the Group documenting the Group's intention (on a non-binding and without prejudice basis) to meet
the future payments for the leases as they fall due, The Group will continue to explore its options to recover these amounts from the relevant parties.
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19 - Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

30 June 2021 Recognised in Recognised in Transfers 30 June 2022
profit and loss other from related
comprehensive party
income
£'000 £000 £'000 £000's £000
Group
Liability/(Assets)
Employee Benefits 802 836 1,353 - 3,091
Property 13,610 {5,692) - - 7.818
Leases (31,624) 2,627 - (621) {29,618)
Losses {24,128) (4,852) - - (28,980)
Gain on CPO receipt 9,337 . . - 9,337
Interest Rate Swap (394) (183) 576 - (L))
Provisions/unpaid Accruals (91) 273 - . 182
Loan relationships (167) . - - {167)
Corporate interest restriction e (3,808) - 4 (3,808)
(32,655) {10,899) ° 1,829 (521) (42,148)
Company
Liability/(Assets)
Employee Benefits 902 836 1,363 - 3,001
Losses {1,166) (3,574) - - {4,740)
Interest Rate Swap {394) (183) 576 - (1)
Provisions/unpaid Accruals (91) 273 - s 182
Corporate interest restriction . (2,860) .t - (2,860)
(7a8) " (5,508) 1,929 © < (4,328)
30 June 2021 Recognised in Recognised in other 30 June 2022
profit and loss comprehensive
income
£'000 £'000 £°000 £000
Group
Liabllity/(Assets)
Employee Benefits 957 355 {410) 802
Property 10,250 3,260 - 13,510
Leases (24,812) (6,812) - (31,624)
Losses (6,687) (17,174) (267) (24,128)
Gains 7.172 2,165 s 9,337
Interest Rate Swap (545) = 151 (394)
Provisions/unpald Accruals (30) (61) - (91)
Loan relationships B (167) - (167)
(13,695) (18,434) (526) '(32,655)
Company
Liability/{Assets)
Employee Benefits 957 355 (410) 902
Losses (194) (705) (267) (1,168)
Interest Rate Swap (545) - 151 (394)
Provisions/unpaid Accruals (30) ©1) - (91)
@ T (526)

188 ~

(748)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a right to set off current tax assets and liabilities which relate to the same taxation
jurisdiction, Deferred tax assets are recognised on the basis that they will be absorbed by forecast future taxable profits. It is the Group's policy to
pay for any losses surrendered to fellow group companies. Directors estimate that the trading losses deferred tax asset will be recovered in 4 years

based on current forecasts.

On 7 April 2022 £521,000 of deferred tax was transferred from related party GLH RHG Limited to the Royal Horseguards Hotel (London) Limited

as part of a restructuring exercise.
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19 - Deferred tax assots and liabllities (continued)

As at 30 June 2022, the Company has no temporary differences (2021: £3,251,000) (unprovided deferred tax asset in respect of corporate interest

restriction) on which no deferred tax asset is recognised due to insufficient evidence that these amounts will be recovered in the foreseeable future.

The chergeabié gain on the disposal of the property, as a result of compulsory purchase order (*Gain on €PO Raceipt’), in Euston Hotel (London}

Limited was transferred to The Cumberland Hotel (London) Limited. Both companies made the valid tax eiéctions o transfer the chargéable’gain

from Euston Hotel (London) Limited to The Cumberand Hotel (London) Limited for financial year 2020 The resulting chargeable gain in The,

Cumbertand Hotel (London) Limited was deferred under the roll-over relief claim and as such it has not been crystalised in The Cumbertand Hotel
(London) Limited’s tax return for financial year ended June 2022,

20 - Financial instruments
a) Financial isk management policies and objectives

Exposure to liquldity; credit, intesest rate and curréncy risk arises in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group manages financial risk
within its general risk management philosophy and framework.

Derivative financial instruments may be used to reduce the exposure of underlying assets and liabilities to fluctuations in interest rates, While these
are subject to the risk of market rates changing subsequent to acquisition, such changes are generally offset by opposite effects on the items being
hedged.

b} Liquidity nisk2 .3

Liquidily is managed on a dally basls by the {reasury and finance depariments-of the Group. They ére responsible for ensuring that the Group has
adequate liquidity for all opérations, ensuring that the funding mix is appropriate so as fo gvoid matunty misnialches. The Group manages liquidity
fisk on behalf of the Company, supported by intermediate parent company of the Group, Guoco Group Limited, ensuring sufficient liquid assets of
appropriate quality are available to meet shon term funding requirements, T ’ ’ ’ o

The Group is financed by a combination of an unsecured bank loan with an external lender, unsecured RCF with an external lender and cash.
The Group also has access to a committed, unsecured facility which is used as and when required to fund the Group’s cash needs, The Group’s
bank holds an intercompany guarantee between the Group’s parent company, Clermont Hote! Group Limited, and all its subsidiaries.

The following table details the remaining contractual malurities at the balance sheet date of the Group's non-derivative financial fiabilities and
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contraciual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay,

In the financial year ending 30 June 2023 there are no debt repayments due,

As at 30 June 2022 Carrying Total Within 1 More More than More
- amount contractual year or on than 2 years than
undiscounted demand 1 year but but Syears
cashflow less than less than
2years 5 years
£000's £000's £000’s £000's £000’s £000's
Group
Non-derivative
financlal liabilities:
Unsecure bank loans 192,669 198,305 4,244 194,061 - -
Trade and other payables 27,507 27,507 27,607 - - .
Amounts owed to parent 119,409 131,128 5,118 128,010 - B
company of the Clermont
Group
Amount owed to related 948 948 948 e . 2
parties o
Lease liabilities 585,204 1,947,893 37,884 35,658 107,139 1,767,172
926,737 = 2,308,781 76,701 365,789 107,139 . 1,767,472

2 The Group has disclosed amounts owed to parent company of the Clermont Group and amounts owed to related parties as a non-derivative
financial liability, This change has been applied to the comparative information also.

3 The Group has disclosed lease liabilities as a non-derivative financial liability in accordance with IFRS. This change has been applied to the
comparative information also,
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20 - Financial instruments (continued)

b) Liquidity risk (continued)
As at 30 June 2021 Carrying Total Within 1 More More than More
amount contractual year or on than 2years than
undiscounted demand 1 year but but 5years
cashflow fess than less than
* 2years 5years
£000's £000’s £000's £000's £000's £000's
Group
Non-derivative
financial liabllitias:
Secure debenture stocks 55,331 59,738 59,738 - - -
Unsecure bank loans 156,342 161,239 7,894 1,876 151,469 ‘.
Trade and other payables 28,211 28,211 28,211 - Ex -
Amounts owed to related 9,198 9,198 9,198 - = L3
parties
Lease liabilities 666,914 2,026,666 50,334 45,839 130,977 1,799,516
Derivative financial
liabilities:
Interest rate swaps used for 1,667 1,996 1,037 784 175
hedging (net settled) e - -
917,663 e 2,287,048 . - 156,412 48,499 282,621 1,799,516

c) Credit risk

The Group's credit risks are primarily attributable to trade and other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis,

Bank deposits are managed by the Group and are only deposited in counterparties who have high credit quality. Transactions involving derivative
financial instruments are with counterparties with sound credit ratings.. The Group has limits for exposures to Individual counterparty and country
to manage concentration risk.

The hotel business has its own credit policy to allow credit period of up to 60 days for its customers. The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risks and does not obtain any collateral from customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset,
including derivative financial instruments, in the statement of financial position after deducting any impairment allowance.

Expected credit loss (“ECL")

The Group applied the simplified approach to measure expacted credit loss, i.e,, the lifetime expected loss allowance for its trade receivables. In
measuring the expected credit losses, trade receivables are grouped based on similar credit risk characteristics and days past due, The Group
uses an allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of trade receivables. The expected loss rates are calculated based on historical credit losses, which
are adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which the historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group's view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowances based on the ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date are as follows:

Allowances for Allowances for

Gross impairment loss Gross impairment loss

30 June 2022 30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2021

£000's £000's £000's £000's

Not past due nor impaired 2,618 - 384 -
Less than 1 month past due 837 {98) 653 (242)
1 to 3 months past due 414 (79) 37 (19)
Greater than 3 months past due 1,591 -{1,635) 1,420 (,717)

5,460 T 1,812) 12,494 : (1.978) ~

Based on historical default rates and adjusted forward-looking macroeconomic data, the Group believes that, apart from the above, no other
impairment allowance is necessary, These receivables are mainly relating to customers that have a good record with the Group. The &llowance
account in respect of trade receivables is used to record impalrment losses unless the Group is satisfied that no recovery of the amount owing is
possible; at that point the amounts are considered irrecoverable and are written off against the financial asset directly.

The movement in allowances for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

Lifetime ECL

£000's
At 1 July 2020 ' 791
Impairment loss recognised during the year - . ,187..
At 30 June 2021 1,978
Reversal of Impairment loss during the year e {188)
At 30 June 2022 1812
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d) Interest rate risk

The Group's and Company’s interest rale risk arises from freasury activities and borrowings. Interest rate risk is managed by the treasury department
within approved limits. The Group and Company also uses interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate exposure as appropriate,

As a result of extension of loan maturity date from 16 December 2019 to September 2023, two forward interest rate swaps with total nominal value
of £75m (2021: £75m) and matching tenors to repayment due dates of the last two tranches of the loan (i.e. tenors of 33 months and 45 months)
were entered into by the Company. These forward interest rate swaps, which were transitioned from LIBOR to SONIA in the financial year, require
the Company to pay a fixed interest and receive a variable rate equal to SONIA (2021: LIBOR) on the notional amount. There was no change to
the relationship between the hedged item and instrument as a result of this benchmark reform, as such there were no significant assumptions or
judgements made. The interest rate swaps are valued using valuation technique with market observable inputs, The valuation technique is swap
model, using present value calculations, which incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of counterparty, interest rate and forward rate
curve.

There is no sensitivity to changes in floating interest rates as movements in the floating rate of the unsecured bank loan will offset with the amount
received on the interest rate swap.

e) Currency risk
The Group's net monetary asssts and liabilities are denominated in steding and therefore are not subject to currency risk.
f} Capital management

The Group defines the capital that it manages as the Group's total equity and net debt balances of £438.4m (2021: £402.2m) and £471.7m (2021:
£185.1m).

The Group's ob]ecu are lo safeguard its, abmty fo continué a8 a going concemn providing returns to sharéholders, through the optimization of the

a aling and headroom, The Group manages s cepital structure ahd makes® appropriste
degisions in light of th current ¢ economlc conditions and sua(egv ob}edlves of the' Group The directors are ‘satisfied that lhe Group is meeting its
objectives for managing capital on the basis of year-on-year revenue growth, tight: cost contrd and main!ammg cashflow. There are no external

restrictions on capital management for the Group,

There has been no change In the objectives, policies or processes with regards to capital management during the years ended 30 June 2021 and
30 June 2022.

g) Fair value of financial instruments

The table below analyses financial instruments, into a fair value hierarchy based on the valuation technique used to determine falr value.

- Lei@l 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liablfities

- L.evel 2: inputs olher than ‘quoted prices |nduded ‘within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or

Indlredly (l.e., defived from prices)
SLével 3: input (or the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs):
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The fair values of all financial assets and financial liabilities by class together with their carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position

are as follows:
Fair value of financial instruments
Group- As at 30 June 2022

Financial assets at amortised
cost

Cash and cash equivalents
Amount owed by related parties
(note 14)

Armount owed by immediate parent
company (note 14)

Trade receivables (note 14)

Other receivables (note 14)

Financial assets held for
hedging
Interest Rate Swaps (note 17)

Total financial assets

Financial liabliities at amortised
cost

Borrowings (note 18)

Trade payables (note 15)

Amount owed to related parties
(note 15)

Amount owed to parent company
of the Clermont Group (note 15)
Other payables (note 15)

Total financlal liabilities

Total financial instruments

Group- As at 30 June 2021

Financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents
Amount owed by related parties
(note 14)

Amount owed by immediate parent
company (note 14)

Amount owed by parent company
of the Clermont Group (note 14)
Trade receivables (note 14)

Other receivables (note 14)

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities held for
hedging
Interest Rate Swaps (note 17)

Financial liabilitles at amortised
cost

Borrowings (note 16)

Trade payables (note 15)
Amount owed to related parties
(note 15)

Other payables (note 15)

Total financial liabilities

Total financial instruments

.Financlai Instrumont-
Interest rate swap

Carrying amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000’s
20,947 20,947 - - .
15,178 15,178 - - :
63,101 53,101 - ] -

3,648 3,648 - . .
12,438 12,438 - . .
730 730 . ‘- 730 -
106,042 . 106,042 . - 730 -
(192,669) (192,669) - - .
(6,694) (6,894) . - %
(948) (948) . . .
{119,409) {119,409) B - -
{20,813) {20,813 - - -
(340,533) 340,533 :. . .
{234,491} (234,491) - 730 -
Carmrying amount Fair value Level 1 Levef 2 Level 3
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
26,515 26,515 . o -
12,168 12,168 .- i -
107,141 107,141 t E =
14 14 - - .
516 516 - &
2,663 2,663 - & B
148,017 149,017 - - .
(1,667) (1,667) - (1.667) -
(211,673) (211,673)
(3,461) (3.461) i : :
(9.198) (9,198) < - -
{12,931) (12,931) - - .
(238,930) . {238,930) - (1,667) -
(89.913) (89.913) - (1.667) .

Valuation Technique
The fair value of interest rate swaps is based on broker quotes. Those quotes are tested for reasonableness by

discounting estimated future cash flows based on the terms and maturity of each contract and using market Interest
rates for a similar instrument at the measurement date.-

4 The Group has not disclosed lease liabilities fn the financial instruments note in accordance with IFRS. This change has been applied to the

comparative information also.

s The carrying amounts of the financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are a reasonable approximation of fair values. The

comparaiive u)fomnatlon in the table ahmmng fair value: hierarchy has been represented:

ng

immediate parent

have been disciosed net of prov:snon tor bad debt.
losed amouints owed to/by relatéd parties; amount owed to parent.company of the Clermont Group and amount owed to
pany as a financial instrument. This change has been applied to the comparative information aiso.

® The Group has discloséd borrowmgs as afinancial liabilily at amortised cost. This change has:been applied to the comparative information also.
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21 ~ Share Capital and share premium

Number of Number of Nominal Value Nominal Value
shares shares
30 June 2021
30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2022
No. No. £'000 £'000
Ordinary shares of 25.65 pence each
Issued and fully paid:
At the beginning and end of the year 310,545,214 310_.545:214 79,655 79,655
Issue of capital 1 - - B
At the beginning and end of the year 310,545,215 310,545.214 79,856 79,655

On 17 December 2021 the Company issued 1 ordinary sharés, of £0.2565 par value at a gremium-of £55,377,261, fo parent oompany "Clermant
Hotel Hotdings Umited. The liability arising from the issue of these shares was offset against mlemompany balances Following the issue the
COmpany has 310,545,215 ordinary shares with 8 fiominal value of £0.2565 each. . The shares have attached 16 thém full valing, dlvldend ‘and
cap«la} dlslnbullon nghta They do not-confer any dgms of tedempllon

22 - Hedging Reserve

The hedging resesve comprises the effective portion of the cumuiative net change in the fair viélue of hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges
pending subsequent recognition in profit o loss as the hedged cash flows affect profit or (0ss.;

23 - Retained earnings

The retained earnings reserve comprises the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
During the financial year the Company did not issue any dividend (2021: Nif). During the year the Group recognised a gain on lease disposal of
£19,188,000 and deferred tax of £3,647,000 directly in retained earnings. See note 12 for details.

The non-controlling interest balance of £1,883,000 (2021: £1,983,000) relates ta the loss attributable to the other members of the Grand Imperial
Restaurant LLP.

24 ~ Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates two Schemes, both of which are closed to new members, which are of the funded defined benefit type and their assets are
held in separate funds administered by Trustees.

These defined benefit pension schemes expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and market
(investment) risk.

The amounts recognised in the stelément of financial position have been determined by a qualified independent actuary by updating the latest full
actuarial assessiments of the schemss as at 28 June 2020 16 30 Jung 2022 and comprise:

Retirement Benefit Obligations

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000’s
Fair Value of Schemes' 95,426 110,881 114,429 100,563 98,044 98,108
investment assets
Present value of unfunded (82,942) (106,080) (109,390) (94,864) (89.400) (97,8657)
obligations
Net Surplus in 12,484 4,801 5,039 ) 5,599 8,644 451
schemes .

A portion of the above net (assets)/llabllitlas is expec(ed to be setlled.after moré than one year, However, it is not practicable to segregate this
amount from the amounts payabie in the next twelve months; as fu!ure oontnhul ns wm also relate to future services rendered and future
changes in actuarial assumptions and market conditions, There is no maximum’ economic benefit available, and the Group has an unconditional
right to the surplus,

Statement of Financial Position Reconciliation

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£000's £000's
Net asset at beginning of the year 4,801 5,039
Pension expense vecogmsed in profit or loss in the financial year (389) (a))
Amounts recognised in OC! in the financial year 4,040 (710)
Employer contributions made in the financial year ) _4032. 543
Net asset at the end of the year 12,484 4,801
The below table provides an estimate of Year ended
contributions for the year ended 30 June 2022 30 June 2022
£000's
Company contributions 4,032
Member contributions ‘2.
Total - 4,034

Neither scheme has any minimum funding requirements. The Group expects to pay £2,800,000 (2021: £4,400,000) in contributions to its defined
benefit plans in the year ending 30 June 2023.
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24 - Retiremnent benefit obligations (continued)
The Trystee_ are responsible for:

{4 heme (supported Ky advisors as required to fulfil their duties);
« Agreeing cash-funding from the COmpany' and

+ Setting a formal investment strategy for the scheme that balances risk and return.

The schemes are ring-fenced from the Company and administered under UK Trust Law.

Principal actuarial assumptions

Financial assumptions

Discount rate

Inflation assumption (RPt)

Inflation assumption (CPI)

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase to pensnons in payment (RPI maximum 5% pa)
Rate of lncrease to pensrons in payment (CPI maximum 3% pa)
ons in payment (CP! maximum 2.5% pa)

Life expeciancy at age 65 of male member aged 65 at year-and
Life expectancy at age 65 of male member aged 45 at year-end

Clermont Hotel Group Limited

Annuel report and financial statements
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Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021

% %

3.65 1.95

3.00 3.00

245 2.55

4.00 1.00

290 290

2.08 215

1.85 1,95

21.6 years 21.6 years
22.8 years 22,9 years

In the current financial year, the Group increased the RPI and CPI gap to 0.55% (2021: 0.45%) to reflect current market conditions,

Changes in the fair value of the Schemes’ assets

Fair value of Schemes' assets at start of the financial year
Net interest on Scheme assets

Remeasurement loss on scheme assets

Contributions from the Company

Contributions from members

Administrative expenses

Benefits paid

Fair value of Schemes' assets at end of the financial year

Analysis of Scheme assets

Equities / Diversified Growth Fund
Bonds

Cash

Insurance policy

Total market value of assets

All the Schemes' assets are quoted on active investments markets.

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
£000's £000's
110,881 114,429
2,149 1,624
{16,269) (983)
4,032 543
2 2
(502)
(4,867) (4,734)
95,426 . 110,881
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June 2021
2022
£000's £000's
38,722 62,460
47,976 23,610
4,144 19,079
4,684 5,732 .
. 85426 .. . —=~ 110,881

No amounts are Included in the Schemes' assets in respect of the shares of the Company or its ultimate parent company.

Changes In the present value of the Schemes® unfunded obligations

Present value of the Schemes' obligation at the start of the financial year
Current service cost
Interest cost

Contributions from membeérs
Benefits paid

Present value of the Schemes' obligation at the end of the financial year
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Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June 2021
2022

£000's £000's

106,080 109,390

15 159

2,021 1,536

(21,224) 3,079

(88) (6,481)

1,001 3,129

2 2

{4,867) (4,734)

] 82,942 - 108,080
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24 ~ Retirement beneflt abligations (continued)

Sensmvlty analysls?
Changes in the following principal actuarial assumptions would have the following effect on the defined benefit surplus:
30 June 30 June 2021
2022
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
£000's £000’s
Discount rate:
0.1 percentage point increase 1,050 1,395
0.1 percentage point decrease {1,050) (1,513)
Rate of Increase In salaries:
0.1 percentage point increase (100) (613)
0.1 percentage point decrease 100 345
Inflation:
0.1 percentage point increase (483) (4,485)
0.1 percentage point decrease 450 4,485
Life expectancy:
One-year increase 3,310 100
One-year decrease (3,338) (100)

“The above sensllivities are based on the average duration of the benefit abligation de!em)ined at the date of the last full dctuanal valuation at 28
June 2020 and aré ‘applied to adjust the defined banefit obligation at the end of the. reporting period for thé assumptions concemed. Whilst the
analysis does not take account of the full distnibuiion of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an apprommauon to the sensitivity of
the assumptions shown.

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
£000's £000’s
Included in operating costs:
Current service cost 15 159
Administrative expenses 502 <
Included in finance income:

Net interest receivable on the Scheme's surplus {128} {88)
Pension expense recognised in profit and loss 3689 71
Inctuded in other comprehensive income:

Remeasurement loss on scheme assets 16,268 983

Actuarial (gain)/loss afising from changes in financial assumptions (21,224) 3,079

Actuarial gain’ aﬁslng from changes in‘demographic assumptions (86) (6.481)

Actuarial loss arising from experience 1,001 3,128
Total (gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive income (4,049_!_ 710
Total (gain)Noss recognised in the Stat: t of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive {3,651) 781

income

Defined contribution pension schemes

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for certain employees, Costs for the financial year amounted to £630,000 (2021:
£528,000).

25 - Related party transactions

Management feas of £178,000 (2021: £475,000) are payable to Guoline Group Management Co. Limited, a member of the GuoLine Capital Assets
Limited Group. The amount accrued but unpaid at the year-end amounted to Nil (2021: NII).

Income of £590,000 (2021: £580,000) is receivable from Clermont Hotel Management Limited a related party in respect for rent and services
charges for office space.

On 7 April 2022 the trade and assets from relaléd party, GLH'RHG Limited and GLH KG Limited were transferred to'the Group as part of a
restruciuring exercise. The value of the net assels transferred was £35,325 ,000-and £3,608,000 respeclively. The intercampany leases held with
GLH RHG Limited and GLH KG Limitad were also términatéd on lhis date and the external property lease was novated from GLH RHG Limited to
the Group.

‘On 7 Apiil 2022 Quoted Eurobond loan rotes debt with a value of £91,000,000 and £27, 300,000, repayable al par on 30 June 2024 (o Clermont
Group (Cayman) Uimited, were transferred to the Group from related party GLH RHG Limited and GLH KG Limited respéctively. Ths interest rate
‘on the loan notes was 4.2%, The loan notes ware subsequenlly combined on the same day with'the same interest and repayment terms. Intetest
expense of £1,144,000 was recognised in the year in relation to this loan note.

Annuat rent of £7,412,000 (2021 £9,500,000). was_paid In the year to GLH RHG Limiled and GLH KG Limited, both of which are controlled by
Ciermont Group (Ceyman) Limited. At the balance sheet date, the Group has no right-of-use assets and lease liabililles in relation to these rental
_egreement as the leases were terminated In'the year as par of (he restmctunng exercise,

® The row headings have been updated to 0.1 percentage point. The figures disclosed in the previous year were calculated based on this level of
sensitivity so no change has been made to the comparatives
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25 - Related party transactions (continued) .
Interest of Nil (2021: £1,761,000) was received from Clermont Hotel Holdings Limited in respect of a loan balance.

In addition, the Group entered Into transactions with Clermont Hotel Management Limited of £11,742,000 (2021: £326,000) in respect of
management fees. .

The net movements from these transactions are accumulated in the amounts owed to or from related parties, immediate parent eompaHy and
subsidiaries shown in Notes 14 and 15, ,

Receivable Receivable
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£000's £000's

Amounts owed by parent companies of the Group
Clemmont Hotel Holdings Limited — immediate parent 53,101 107,141
Clermont Group (Cayman) Limited - intermediate parent company I 14

531 01- . . 107.155

A ts owed by related parties
GLH IP Holdings Limited 1,018 1,010
Clermont Hotel Management Limited . 44,160 11,158
N 16,178 " —_ 12,168 ~
Total amount owed by parent companies and related parties . 68,279 119,323
Payable Payable
30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£000's £000's
Amounts owed to parent companies of the Group
Clermont Group (Cayman) Limited - intermediate parent company {119,409) . . - .
N {119,408) z
Amounts owed to related parties
GLH KG Limited (52) (1.782)
GLH RHG Limited {896) (7.416)
{948) (9,198)
Total amount owed to related parties ‘120,357) (9,198)

Company

Management fees of £175,000 (2021: £175,000) are payable to Guoline Group Management Co. Limited, a member of the Guol.ine Capital Assets
Limited Group.. The amount accrued but unpaid at the year-end amounted to Nil (2021: Nil).

Net Interest income of £775,000 (2021: £1,708,000) was payable from subsidiaries of the Company in respect of loan balances.

Interest of Nif (2021: £1,761,000) was received from Clermont Hotel Holdings Limited in respect of a loan balance,

Dividend income of Nif (2021: £157,543,000) was received from subsidiaries of the Company.

On 7 April 2022 Quoted Eurobond loan notes debt with a value of £91,000,000 and £27,300,000, repayable at par on 30 June 2024 to Clermont
Group (Cayman) Limited, were transferred to the Company from related party GLH RHG Limited and GLH KG Limited respectively. The interest
-rale on the |08n notes;was 4.2%. The loan notes were subsequently comblned on the same day with the same interest and repayment terms, -
Inleresl expanse of £1 144,000 was reoognlsed in the year in relation ta thig loan note.

The Company operates a central treasury function to which subsidiaries transfer their cash receipts and which settles all the subsidiaries’ trading
liabilities. Itis not practicable to quantify the gross amounts of these transactions, The net movements from these transactions are accumulated
in the amounts owed to or from subsidiaries shown in Notes 14 and 15,

26 - Financial commitments

30 June 2022 30 June 2021
£000 £'000
Capital commitments
Contracted for but not provided in the accounts 1,332 637

27 - Post Balance Sheet Event

(a) On 22 July 2022 £10m was repaid of the unsecured Revolving Credit Facility (‘RCF"). A further £7m was repaid on 9 September 2022 and £10m
repaid on 8 December 2022. The total gross external borrowing of the Group is £166m at the date of approval of these financial statements.

(b) The Group are making considerations for refinancing of the unsecured bank term loan and RCF, maturing September 2023 and totalling £186m
at the date of approval of these financial statements, .

(c) On 1 November 2022 the Group underwent a rebranding, in which the company name was changed to Clermont Hotel Group Limited. The
Group will operate three core brands with distinct propositions, The Clermont, Thistle and Hard Rock, as part of the Hard Rock franchise.

As a result of the rebrand, the Amba brand has already been discontinued and the Guoman brend is to be discontinued in the near future. As a
result of the rebranding, the Amba Marble Arch was rebranded as a Thistle and the Guoman Tower Hotel will be rebranded as a Thistle.
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27 - Post Balance Sheet Event (continued)

(d) On 4 November 2022 the Group received correspondence from insurers offering a further £10m towards a business interruption insurance claim
which had been progressing since November 2020, Prior to this an interim amount of £15m had been received in January 2021, £8.5m was received
on 25 November 2022 and £1.5m was received on 28 November 2022, The remainder of the claim is slill in discussion.

£8m of the £10m has been recognised in this Group, with the remainder recognised in companies outside of this Group. As detailed in note 28, this
is a post balance sheet adjusting event, with £8m of other income recognised, along with the correspending asset within accrued income. See note
14

28 - Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparalxon of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, eslimates and assumptions that aﬁed
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounls of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual (eeu!ls may dilrar from these
estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. Whilst some outcomes have been affected by the volatility in the financial markets, all
judgements and assumptions in the accounting policies remain consistent with previous years.

,ln padlcular mformatnon about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applylng accounling policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts reoognlsed in the ﬂnandal statements is included In the following noies

Estimates

The Group and Company is required to ss whether there is indication of imp: alrment to the canrying vajue of properdy, plant and equnpmenl‘
right-of-use assats and Investment in- subsidiaries which had a value of £777, 485 000 (2021: £631,234,000), £433,681,000 (2021: £487,448 000)
and £668,792,000 (2021: £547,457,000) respectively. In making that assessment; estimates are made In calculating a recoverable amount, The
Group malntains a value In use model to ascertain that the canrying value of its tangible assets can be supported by the highe: of the fair value less
cost o sell or value In use as required under IFRS The followlng assumplions are used inthat model: -

. WACC Rate - in the current year the Group used a pre-tax WACC rate methodology, with rates between 7.50%-10.52% (2021: 7.39%-
9.17%) considered a reasonable rate for the Group, The Group calculates a past-tax WACC rate based on the debt — equity ratio, oosl
of equity and cost of debl with a Group specific Alpha and Beta, updated to reflect long term yleld rates and fisk, The Group then usés
his post-tax WACC rate to celeulsle an implied pre-tax WACC rate specific to each subsidiary based on its discounted future cash’
flows. The impalment assessments have been performed for a period to fhe end of the lease térms. The value in usé of the Group's
propeﬂles is sensitive to movements in the WACC rate assumption. A 0.25% change in the WACC rale would mdve the value in use of
the propenles by | £50. 5m An Increase in the WACC rate of 0.25% would result in the Hard Rock hote! end Roya! Horseguards holel

. Short term and long term growth rate — The judgement applied in setting the short and long term growth rate is based on the forecast

for the hotel. The Group exercises significant judgement to set the forecast, with the Group looking at specific hotel and Group level

‘Initiatives. Based on these factors the Group will déetermine the expected uplift in the hotels. Long term growth rate used is 2.0%. The’

:value in use of the properties is sensllive to movements in the fong term growth rate. A 0.5% change In {he fong ferm growth ra(ewould

move the value in use of the Group's propertias by £88.0m.-A reduction In the long term growth rate of 0.5% would result in the Hard'

. Rock hotel and Royal Horseguards hotel showing indication of impairment. As above, the book value of the properties is supported by’
a market valuation which is higher than the book value,

» Replacement CAPEX —'d% of revenue has been deemed an appropnate rate for the Group. This is consistent with hote! operating
* agreements for holels operated by the wider Group. The value in use of the properfies is sensitive {o movements in the reptacement
capex assumption.”A 1% change in the replacement capex rate would move the value In use of the Groip's properly by £4.8m, An
increase In the replacement capex rate of 1% would result In the Hard Rock hotei and Royal Horseguards hotel showing indication of
impairment.’As above, the book value of the property is supported by a market veluation whlch is higher than the book value.

. alndusuy recovery —Aﬂer the Jmpacf of Omlcron, The Group have seen'a reeovery Inthe second half of FY22. The value in use model
“assomes the recovery of both rate and eccupancy continues through FY23 and FY24, with'a rétum to pre-COVID trade levels from July
2025 onwards, It also factors in the impact of a worsening mﬂallonary en\ﬁronmem with gross operating i income across all hotels on
- average 5% lower than previously modelled from FY23 onwards.’A 5% change In occupancy In the thrée yéars to 30 June 2025 would
move the value in use by £14.8m. A reduction of 5% in occupancy in these three years would result In the Hard Rock hotel and Royal
Horseguards hotel showing indication of impairment. As above, the book value of the property is supported by a market valuation which

is higher than the book value. - o T oo

Consideration of impalrment to-the carrylng valtigs of assels has beén made and the directors concluded that the individual canymg values of
opsrating essels were not supportable by the value in use or fair valus tess costs to sall, “This fesulted In'an impairment of property, plant, and
equupmem during the year of £2,1765,000 (2021; £79,000) as detailed in no{e 10.an impalnnenl of righl or-use assels of £5,110,000 (2021 -

The below are other areas of estimation in the preparation of the financial statements:
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28 - Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

. Incremental homowing rate ("IBR") - & range of 4,88-5.53% was considered a reasonable rate range for the Group. The IBR was
calculated based on a quoted margin from an external lender, LIBOR at transition date, and a term adjustment based on corporate bond
yields for a tenor in line with the underlying lease, and risk profile similar to that of the Group.

‘. Forecast cashflows — Assumptions of future cashflows have been made as part of the going concern and impairment assessments.
These include assumptions of recovery of revenue through and post the pandemic and expected margins achieved, Management use
recent performance and external forecasts as the basis for these.

. Deferred tax asset recoverability — recognition of the deferred tax asset for trading losses has been supported by forecast profitability
for the wider group, These forecasts evidence the Group will be able to utilise these losses.

. Property, plant and equipment — Depreciation is provided so as to write down the assets to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives as set out in the accounting policies for property, plant and equipment.. Estimation is required in the selection of these
residual values and useful lives.

Judgement

. Leases - The Group assesses at lease commencement whether it is reasonably certain to exercise any extension options included
within leases. The Group reassesses whether It Is reasonably certain to exercise the aption if there is a significant event or significant
change in circumstances within its control. The assessment of whether future lease extension periods will be utilised requires the
exercise of judgement.

. Debtor recoverability - as part of the Group's ECL assessment, judgement has been made on the expected recoverability of balances
owed to the Group, which had a carrying value of £5,460,000 (2021: £2,494,000). The Group have made use of historic recovery rates,
and economic data available on specific debtars in order to determine lifetime expected credit losses.

. Insurance claim income ~ since November 2020 the Group have been progressing with a business interruption insurance claim, for
which an interim payment was received in January 2021. Following the year end, the insurers agreed to pay a further £10m of which
£8.5m was received on 25 November 2022 and £1.5m was received on 28 November 2022. As it has been offered and received,
management deem £10m to be virtually certain and, as in relation to a claim open at the end of the financial year, a post balance sheet
adjusting event, An asset and corresponding income of £8.1m have been recognised in this financial year for the amount due to this
Group.

The Group continues to pursue the remainder of the claim. No agreement has been reached with the insurers at the time of approval of
the financial statements, and the amount is uncertain and unable to be quantified. As such no further amount has been recognised.

29 - Parent and ultimate parent undertakings and controlling parties

The immediate parent undertaking is the Clermont Hotel Holding Limited, a company registered in England, which underwent a name change from
GLH Hotels Holdings Limited on 1 November 2022, Copies of the financial statements of Clermont Hotel Holdings Limited, which consolidate the
results of the Group, are available from Companies House, Cardiff.

Clermont Hotel Group Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of GL Uimited, a company registered in Bermuda. The registered office address is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda, GL Limited is both controlled and its financial results consolidated by Guoco Group
Limited, a company continued in Bermuda and listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Copies of the accounts of Guoco Group Limited
are available from its website www.guoco.com,

The directors of the Company consider its ultimate holding company to be GuoLine Capital Assets Limited, a company incorporated in Jersey which
does not produce financial statements available for public use.
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